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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors 
Oregon Health & Science University: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Oregon Health & Science University, an 
Oregon public corporation and a component unit of the State of Oregon, which comprise the statement of 
net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Oregon Health & Science University as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in 
its financial position and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on 
pages 3 through 17 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information, including RSI on page 54, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole. The supplemental information included in schedules 1 and 2 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

October 25, 2013 
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Introduction and Financial Highlights 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial activities of Oregon Health & 
Science University (OHSU or the University) and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and 
related note disclosures. This discussion was prepared by management and is designed to focus on current 
activities, resulting changes, and current known facts. 

Financial Highlights 

To manage its operations and monitor its financial position, OHSU focuses on two key indicators: the total 
university operations component of operating income (before consolidation of the Foundations and 
reclassification of state appropriations to nonoperating revenues), and the total change in consolidated net 
position, which includes the Foundations, investment income and other nonoperating items. The chart below 
shows these key indicators for the past three fiscal years. Fiscal year 2013 showed continued strong operating 
results and a further strengthening of the University’s financial position, capping three years during which 
consolidated net position increased by $474 million. Total university operations contributed $239 million, and 
investments returned almost all of the remainder of the gain. 
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The following table reconciles these components to consolidated OHSU net position for fiscal years 2013, 2012 
and 2011. This summary follows the methodology of the more detailed consolidating table included at the end of 
these financial statements. 

Components of OHSU Change in Net Position 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2013 2012 2011
Components of operating income:

Hospital operations $ 79,708   80,949   62,532   
Other university operations 18,940   1,909   (5,168)  

Total university operations 98,648   82,858   57,364   

Foundations operations 57,126   (35,829)  (40,751)  
Eliminations for capital contributions and other (655)  (3,958)  40,000   
Reclassification of state appropriations (30,146)  (35,389)  (39,159)  

Consolidated operating income 124,973   7,682   17,454   

State appropriations 30,146   35,389   39,159   
Investment and other nonoperating income 53,038   19,888   95,433   

Consolidated net income 208,157   62,959   152,046   

Capital/nonexpendable contributions and other 13,092   15,650   22,368   

Total change in net position 221,249   78,609   174,414   

Beginning net position 1,948,697   1,870,088   1,695,674   
Ending net position $ 2,169,946   1,948,697   1,870,088   

 

University operations showed continued strength and improvement in 2013, increasing nearly $16 million over 
2012. This reflects a 4.7% or $96.4 million growth in revenues, driven by increased complexity of patient care 
plus application of gift funds in the Knight Cancer Institute and other programs, supported by a smaller 4.1% or 
$80.7 million growth in expenses. The smaller expense increase reflects savings in supply chain, administrative 
and support costs, plus a $6 million reduction in interest expense from a lower interest rate environment, 
restructuring debt and principal repayment. These factors represent continued implementation of OHSU’s 
strategy and redesign efforts, begun in 2011 and 2012 and described further below. Nonrecurring items are 
largely consistent from the prior year: 2013 results include $9 million from favorable accounting adjustments and 
a $2 million affiliation payment, while 2012 included $9 million in one-time operating revenues from a FICA tax 
settlement for OHSU residents trained in prior years. 

The nearly $26 million improvement in 2012 over 2011 included $19 million from nonrecurring items: $10 
million invested in process redesign in 2011 but not 2012, plus $9 million in one-time operating revenues in 2012 
from the FICA tax settlement. The remaining $7 million improvement was the net of two factors: a $21 million 
increase in required contributions for the defined benefit component of the PERS pension plan, which was more 
than offset by a nearly $28 million improvement in core operating performance.  

These core improvements reflect implementation of the strategy and redesign efforts, including enhanced focus 
on tertiary and quaternary care, improvements in revenue cycle and competitive pricing, supply chain and 
workforce productivity, better self-insurance experience, and restructuring OHSU’s debt to secure a lower cost of 
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capital. The hospital operations segment exceeded its 5% operating margin target in each of the past three years, 
while the other university operations segment (which includes the clinical faculty practice, education, research 
and outreach missions) has exceeded its target of balanced revenues and expenses in both 2012 and 2013. 

Within the total university operations component of operating income, gifts and endowment payout are recorded 
when transferred from the Foundations to OHSU as program support. This tends to yield a more even flow of 
philanthropic revenues within this earnings metric. 

Within the Foundations’ component of operating income, the contribution of program support to the University, 
together with the costs of running the Foundations, are recorded as operating expenses. These are largely funded 
by two sources: expendable gifts recorded as operating revenue, and investment income recorded as a 
nonoperating item. Over time, this can result in negative operating income on the Foundations’ statements, 
because operating expenses (program and support costs) are supported by both operating revenues (largely gifts) 
and nonoperating revenues (largely investment returns). This was the case in 2012 when the Foundations showed 
a net operating loss of ($35.8) million. 

The receipt of very large gifts is episodic, resulting in a gain in one year when the gift is made or recorded, offset 
by losses in subsequent years when the gift is transferred to the University in support of the intended program or 
purpose. This was illustrated in 2013 when the Foundations’ operating income increased by $93 million 
primarily due to recording the major component of a $125 million gift from Phil and Penny Knight for the 
establishment of the OHSU Knight Cardiovascular Institute. Finally, the Foundations record expendable gifts for 
capital (such as buildings and equipment) within operating income, while the University records them as 
nonoperating items, requiring a reclassification in consolidation. This was particularly notable in 2011, when the 
$40 million anonymous gift was transferred to the University for the Collaborative Life Sciences Building. 

These recording and timing effects have become increasingly significant with larger gifts to OHSU, and with 
volatility in the financial markets and investment returns. Recent large gifts include the $40 million anonymous 
gift for education in 2007, the $100 million Knight cancer institute gift in 2009, the $25 million Moore Nutrition 
Institute gift in 2012, and the $125 million OHSU Knight Cardiovascular Institute gift, which, as mentioned 
above, is the largest donation in the University’s 125 year history. In September 2013, the Knight family 
challenged OHSU to raise $500 million in the next two years, which they would match for a total of $1 billion. If 
the challenge is successfully met, these funds will be used to help in the fight to eradicate cancer, particularly 
through advanced early detection. 

To capture all of these various effects, OHSU uses a second key financial indicator: total change in net position. 
By design, this metric fluctuates much more than the total university component of operating income, but taken 
over several years, it provides a comprehensive picture of changes in OHSU’s financial strength. Net position 
increased over $221 million or 11.4% in 2013, compared to $79 million or 4.2% in 2012 and $174 million or 
10.3% in 2011. The largest contributors to changes in this indicator have been the Knight Cardiovascular 
Institute gift in 2013, and the change in investment and other nonoperating income, which was $53 million in 
2013, compared to a $20 million in 2012, and $95 million in 2011. Investment returns have been closely 
correlated with year-by-year performance in the overall stock and bond markets. 

The net impact of all of these factors – investments in strategy, productivity and process redesign with 
subsequent improved operations, the timing and recording of gifts, and the volatility in investment returns – has 



DRAFT   10/16/2013   9:12 AM   204565_13_OregonHealth&ScienceUniv_FS.docx  

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 6 (Continued) 

been a 28% increase in consolidated OHSU net position over three years, from $1,696 million on June 30, 2010 
to $2,170 million on June 30, 2013. 

OHSU’s consolidated statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position includes a third indicator of 
financial performance: net income. Net income largely tracks the change in total net position, but excludes 
donations for capital and nonexpendable purposes, such as endowment. In 2013, consolidated net income was 
$208 million, compared to $63 million in 2012 and $152 million in 2011. The changes in net income over these 
three years largely reflect the increase then decrease in investment income plus the gift timing impacts noted 
above. 

OHSU/OUS Collaborative Life Sciences Building (CLSB) and Skourtes Tower 

In fiscal year 2012, OHSU began construction of the CLSB and Skourtes Tower. This new $295 million facility, 
approved by the OHSU board in June 2011, will place programs of OHSU and the Oregon University System 
(OUS) under one roof at the Schnitzer campus on the South Waterfront. In doing so, the facility will strengthen 
partnerships between OHSU and OUS institutions, especially Portland State University and Oregon State 
University, expanding their teaching facilities, student enrollment, and research activities, while creating new 
employment opportunities. Thousands of students across undergraduate, graduate, and professional education 
programs from multiple institutions will be educated at the CLSB. The approximately 500,000 square foot 
facility, plus parking, will include lecture halls, classrooms, laboratories, specialty research centers, office space, 
and a complete replacement of the OHSU School of Dentistry. 

The construction of the project commenced in October 2011 and, as of the end of fiscal year 2013 was on 
schedule for occupancy in late spring 2014. Total OHSU project expenditures as of fiscal year-end 2013 were 
$137 million, with the remaining portion of the project expense expected to occur largely during fiscal year 2014. 

The project consists of two parts that are being built together. The first part is a $160 million joint project of OUS 
and OHSU, including education, research, and support space, funded by $110 million in State bonds ($50 million 
in Article XI G-Bonds and $60 million in Article XI F-Bonds), an anonymous $40 million gift from an OHSU 
donor, and $10 million in TriMet support for a new transit station adjacent to the building. Under the terms of the 
Tenancy In Common Agreement, OHSU assumed debt service for $30 million related to the State Article XI 
F-Bonds issued to fund the construction, which is recorded on the June 30, 2013 and 2012 statements of financial 
position. 

The second part is an OHSU project of $135 million, funded by $50 million in OHSU philanthropy and cash 
reserves, and $85 million from new OHSU debt issued in May 2012. This component will provide space for the 
new OHSU Center for Spatial Systems Biomedicine, additional build-out and shelled laboratory space for 
leading edge research in basic and applied science, and education and clinical space for the School of Dentistry 
in the Skourtes Tower. The complete replacement of the School of Dentistry from its current 1950s building on 
Marquam Hill was made possible by lead gifts from Dr. Gene and Bonnie Skourtes, Moda Health (formerly ODS 
Health) and A-dec, plus additional funds raised by hundreds of other supporters. 

Collectively, $205 million of the $295 million CLSB project will be funded by OHSU, with approximately 
$115 million in debt and $90 million from gifts and cash reserves. 
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FICA Tax Refund 

In March of 2010, the IRS made an administrative determination to exempt medical residents from FICA taxes 
based on the student exception for tax periods ending before April 1, 2005, the effective date of a change in 
Treasury Department regulations that addressed the resident/student issues more expressly. OHSU had filed 
protective claims for 1996 – 2001 and 2004 – forward. In July 2012, OHSU received notification from the IRS 
that, with limited exceptions, claims for refunds to OHSU and to its residents for FICA taxes paid in 1996 
through the first quarter of 2005 were officially approved. As a result of that notification, in fiscal year 2012, 
OHSU accrued $9 million as other operating revenue and $11 million of interest earnings as nonoperating 
revenue. An additional amount of $19 million was also recorded as a receivable that represented the resident 
portion of the FICA tax and interest, with an offsetting liability to refund that amount to them once it was 
received. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2013, OHSU received the refunds from the IRS for both OHSU’s 
and the residents’ portions, which were recorded against the related receivables. OHSU then refunded the 
medical residents their share, offsetting the liability recorded in 2012.  

Statements of Net Position 

The Statements of Net Position includes all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
similar to the accounting used by most private sector organizations. As noted above, net position – the difference 
between assets and liabilities – is among the broadest measures of the financial health of an institution. The 
following summarizes OHSU’s statements of net position for the past three years by major category of assets, 
liabilities, and net position. Over the past two years, assets have increased by 14%, liabilities by 9%, and net 
position by 15%. The cumulative growth in OHSU’s financial strength since 2010 reflects strong operations, 
successful philanthropy, and recovery (with volatility) in financial markets since the economic crisis. 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2013 2012 2011
Assets:

Current assets $ 809,805   837,569   675,193   
Capital assets 1,413,810   1,282,647   1,237,155   
Other noncurrent assets 1,134,483   1,018,114   1,043,889   

Total assets $ 3,358,098   3,138,330   2,956,237   

Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ 348,883   327,566   295,006   
Noncurrent liabilities 839,269   862,067   791,143   

Total liabilities 1,188,152   1,189,633   1,086,149   

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 721,618   629,095   585,242   
Restricted, expendable 396,599   309,035   346,172   
Restricted, nonexpendable 181,156   175,023   165,488   
Unrestricted 870,573   835,544   773,186   

Total net position 2,169,946   1,948,697   1,870,088   
Total liabilities and net position $ 3,358,098   3,138,330   2,956,237   
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Assets 

The largest components of OHSU’s assets are cash and investments and capital assets, or physical plant. OHSU’s 
unrestricted and restricted cash and short-term investments increased significantly from 2012 to 2013 mostly due 
to strong earnings. In 2012, OHSU shifted a portion of its mid- to long-term investments into balanced mutual 
funds in response to market conditions including continued low interest rates. 

This increase to unrestricted and restricted cash and short-term investments in 2013 was approximately 
$69 million over 2011. Total cash and investments, including long-term investments, increased from 
$1,230 million to $1,371 million, showing a steady rise of 11.5% and 5.5% in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. This is a reflection of improved operating gains, as well as increased cash inflows from financing 
associated with the Collaborative Life Sciences Building. 

Consolidated Asset Allocation of 
Unrestricted and Restricted Cash and Investments 

(Dollars in thousands) 

2013 2012 2011

Unrestricted Cash and Investments
Cash and Equivalents 103,296$        156,317$        188,312$       
Fixed Income Investments 555,437         443,767          396,366         
Equity Investments 77,987           70,549            81,975           
Mutual Funds 102,075         57,480            4,229             
Other 90,036           85,732            85,983           

Subtotal 928,831$        813,845$        756,865$       

Restricted Cash and Investments
Cash and Equivalents 32,368$         40,792$          33,643$         
Fixed Income Investments 156,653         140,183          130,415         
Equity Investments 112,744         101,433          110,220         
Mutual Funds 10,764           10,045            10,209           
Other 129,795         123,350          123,784         

Subtotal 442,324$        415,803$        408,271$       

Totals 1,371,155$     1,229,648$      1,165,136$     

Fiscal Years Ended June 30
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The unrestricted portion of cash and investments is represented in the calculation of days cash on hand for 
OHSU, as defined in the restated Master Trust Indenture, including the Foundations, as illustrated below. 

Days of cash on hand decreased from 186 days in 2011 to 183 days in 2012, then increased significantly to 
199 days in 2013, due to improved financial results and positive cash flow, offset in part by higher daily 
expenditures. Total long-term investments increased by over $83 million during 2013 compared to 2012, which 
reflects OHSU’s receipt of the FICA refund, as well as continued improvement in financial performance. 

 

2013 2012 2011 

OHSU 
Unrestricted Cash and Investments 637,504 $         545,901 $         483,171 $         
Less NonOperating Cash and Investments  (33,245)             (23,365)             (11,968)             
Operating Cash and Investments 604,259            522,536            471,203            

Unrestricted Operating Expenses 
Total Operating Expenses 1,734,346 $       1,651,539 $       1,532,670 $       
Less  Depreciation and Amortization (100,330)           (97,898)             (92,641)             
Net Unrestricted Operating Expenses 1,634,016          1,553,641          1,440,029          

Daily Expense  4,477 $             4,245 $             3,945 $             
Days Cash  on Hand 135                  123                  119                  

OHSU plus OHSU and Doernbecher Foundations 
Unrestricted Cash and Investments 928,831 $         813,845 $         756,865 $         
Less NonOperating Cash and Investments (33,245)             (23,365)             (11,968)             
Operating Cash and Investments 895,586            790,480            744,897            

Unrestricted Operating Expenses 
Total Operating Expenses 1,745,313 $       1,675,242 $       1,558,223 $       
Less Depreciation and Amortization (100,491)           (98,055)             (92,792)             
Net Operating Expenses 1,644,822          1,577,187          1,465,431          

Daily Expense  4,506 $             4,309 $             4,015 $             
Days Cash on Hand 199                  183                  186                  

Days Unrestricted Cash and Investments on Hand 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30 
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Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $132 million for fiscal year 2013, after increasing 
by $45 million in fiscal year 2012. This largely reflects construction of the CLSB, as well as timing of projects to 
increase hospital capacity. Capital expenditures for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are listed 
below.  

 

Liabilities 

Total liabilities decreased slightly by $1.5 million or 0.12% in 2013 compared to 2012 and increased 
$103 million or 9.5% in 2012 compared to 2011, driven by new debt associated with the planned Collaborative 
Life Sciences Building and increased accounts payable and accrued expense. Current liabilities consist primarily 
of the current portion of long-term debt, including capital leases, and self-funded insurance, accounts payable and 
accrued expenses, salaries, wages, and benefits payable, and deferred revenue. Current liabilities increased 
$21 million in fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012 due to increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
driven by an increase in accrued expenses associated with work performed but not yet invoiced or paid on the 
Collaborative Life Sciences Building. This was also the case in 2012 as well as increases in accrued salary, 
wages and benefits due to the accrual of most of the expense related to the last two-week payroll period of the 
year. Current liabilities increased $32.6 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to 2011 primarily due to increases 
in accounts payable and accrued expenses driven by increased spending of ARRA (stimulus) grants as deadlines 
for spending continue to be reached. 

Total noncurrent liabilities decreased $23 million in fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012, due to repayment of 
existing debt. Total noncurrent liabilities increased $71 million in 2012 compared to 2011, driven by an increase 
in long-term debt associated with the debt financing of the CLSB, offset by repayment of existing debt. 
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Debt Management 

At the close of fiscal year 2013, OHSU had a total of approximately $752 million in long-term debt and capital 
leases outstanding, net of current portion. Of that, approximately 27% was variable-rate debt issued in the form 
of variable-rate demand bonds (VRDBs). In December 2012, OHSU continued the restructuring of its bond 
portfolio it began in May 2012 and issued series 2012E. This issue refinanced the remaining portion of the 
2002A bonds. The series 2012E bonds were issued December 20, 2012 and will mature July 1, 2032. In 
May 2012, as part of a comprehensive bond portfolio restructuring, OHSU issued refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012A, Series 2012C and Series 2012D, which refinanced over 50% of its currently outstanding debt 
portfolio in order to reduce interest expense as well as convert its previously issued auction rate mode bonds to 
variable rate demand bonds backed by either irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit or as a direct placement. In 
this refunding, the 1995B, 1998A, 1998B and 2002B Bonds were currently refunded in their entirety as well as 
advance refunding a portion of the 2002A Bonds. Due to OHSU’s strong credit ratings (Moody’s A1, Standard & 
Poor’s A+, and Fitch A+, all with stable outlooks), existing debt service reserve requirements on the refunded 
bonds were released and applied to downsize the refunding bond par amount by more than $9 million, resulting 
in further savings. 

Additionally, during the refunding process, OHSU simultaneously issued approximately $85 million of new 
fixed-rate tax-exempt revenue bonds, the 2012B Series, to pay for certain costs of construction and other costs of 
issuance for phase two of the CLSB Skourtes Tower project. The Skourtes Tower will house the new OHSU 
School of Dentistry, whose construction will have significant philanthropic support, as well as built-out and 
shelled laboratory space for leading edge research in basic and applied science. 

In April 2013, OHSU also restructured its interest rate swaps, which were originally entered into with UBS in 
2005 and amended by the University and UBS in 2009 and again in 2012. Under the terms agreement, UBS held 
a call option beginning in April 2014, which was expected to be exercised. For this reason, in April 2013, OHSU 
executed a swap novation, simultaneously terminating the agreement with UBS and entering into an agreement 
with a new counterparty, U.S. Bank. Under the new terms, OHSU’s effective rate on a notional amount of $82 
million went from 3.358% to 3.45935%. 

One measure of the degree of leverage on the University’s balance sheet is the ratio of long-term debt to net 
position, shown below. From fiscal 2011 to 2013, this metric improved, as the addition of new debt for the CLSB 
in 2012 was offset by operating and investment earnings, improved regular repayments of principal, and the 
restructuring of the debt portfolio. 

(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Long term debt 769$        796$        736$        
Net position 2,170       1,949       1,871       

Long term debt to net position 0.35         0.41         0.39         
 

Maximum Annual Debt Service Coverage 

The maximum annual debt service coverage ratio for an entity represents the amount of cash flow available to 
meet the maximum annual interest and principal payment on debt. Under the University’s Master Indenture, 
OHSU (excluding the Foundations) must maintain a coverage ratio (excluding the Foundations) of 1.10x or 
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greater. The University has significantly exceeded this minimum requirement, achieving a ratio of 4.84 in fiscal 
year 2013 and 4.55 in 2012. 

 

Net position 

As noted earlier, total net position increased $221 million during fiscal year 2013, as compared to an increase of 
$79 million during fiscal year 2012. Most of the increase in both fiscal years occurs within net investment in 
capital assets, (up $79 million in 2013 and $44 million in 2012), and in unrestricted, up $35 million in 2013 and 
$62 million in 2012. Restricted components of net position increased in 2013 with the Knight Cardiovascular 
Institute gift, after decreasing in 2012, largely due to the use of restricted gifts received in prior years for their 
intended program or purpose.  

When evaluating OHSU’s net position, it is important to note that OHSU’s Marquam Hill property is leased from 
the State of Oregon for renewable 99-year periods, at a lease payment equal to the debt service on bonds 
outstanding at the time of OHSU’s separation from the Oregon University System. As that debt service is 
relatively low, the capitalized net present value of those lease payments is significantly less than the fair value of 
the included land and buildings. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the operating results, net income and 
change in net position of OHSU on a consolidated basis with the Foundations. The utilization of long-lived 

2013 2012 2011

Total Excess of Revenues over Expenses 208,157$  62,959$    152,046$  
Add/subtract Restricted Net Loss/Gain (85,975)     36,764      (42,341)     

Unrestricted Excess of Revenues over Expenses 122,182$  99,723$    109,705$  

Adjustments
Net Unrealized(gain) loss in Fair Value of Investments (9,412)$     11,793$    (20,822)     
(Gain)Loss on Disposal of Assets (658)          (1,592)       (2,181)       
Interest Expense 28,144      33,482      35,623      
Annual Refund on Trust Reserves held in Parity -            1,824        1,248        
Depreciation and Amortization 100,491    98,054      92,792      

118,565$  143,561$  106,660$  

Income Available for Debt Service 240,747$  243,284$  216,365$  

Maximum Annual Debt Service 49,788$    53,512$    56,833$    

Maximum Annual Debt Service Coverage 4.84          4.55          3.81          

(Dollars in Thousands)
Calculation of Maximum Annual Debt Service Coverage Ratio - Unrestricted
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assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the 
cost of an asset over its expected useful life. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for a 
governmental entity, annual state appropriations are considered nonoperating revenue, but in practice are 
budgeted for operations because they support operating costs for specific education and service programs. In 
fiscal year 2013 and 2012, State appropriations totaled $30 million and $35 million, respectively. 

Consolidated net income for OHSU including the Foundations totaled $208 million in fiscal year 2013, 
compared to $63 million in 2012 and $152 million in 2011. As noted above, the major driver of the year-to-year 
changes in net income was the Knight Cardiovascular Institute Gift in 2013, combined with reduction in 
investment return between 2011 and 2012, followed by an increase in 2013, recorded within nonoperating 
revenues. 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
(Dollars in thousands) 

2013 2012 2011
Total operating revenues $ 2,169,516   1,975,605   1,887,704   
Total operating expenses 2,044,543   1,967,923   1,870,250   

Operating gain (loss) 124,973   7,682   17,454   
Nonoperating revenues, incl. state

appropriations 83,184   55,277   134,592   

208,157   62,959   152,046   

Contributions for capital and other 9,013   4,059   4,281   
Nonexpendable donations 4,079   11,591   18,087   

Change in net position 221,249   78,609   174,414   
Net position – beginning of year 1,948,697   1,870,088   1,695,674   
Net position – end of year $ 2,169,946   1,948,697   1,870,088   

Net income before other changes in 
net position

 

Total Operating Revenues 

Total operating revenues on a consolidated basis (including the Foundations and reclassification of State 
appropriations to nonoperating revenues), totaled $2,170 million in fiscal year 2013, an increase of $194 million 
or 10% from 2012. The largest components of this growth were an increase of $116 million or 30% in gifts, 
grants, and contracts, due primarily to the Knight cardiovascular gift mentioned earlier, as well as an increase of 
$79 million or 6% in net patient service revenues, driven by continued increases in volume and complexity of 
cases.  

In fiscal year 2012, total operating revenues on a consolidated basis were $1,976 million, an increase of $88 
million or 5% from 2011. An increase of $115 million or 9% occurred in net patient service revenues as the 
healthcare mission implemented improvements to increase volume and the complexity of cases. Higher patient 
revenues were partially offset by a reduction of $43 million or 10% in revenues from gifts, grants and contracts, 
which reflects both lower research spending with the phase-out of ARRA (stimulus) grants, as well as the timing 
effects of gifts received by the Foundations, noted in the introduction.  
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Operating Revenue by Source 

Fiscal Year 2013 and 2012 (Total $2.2 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively) 
(Dollars in thousands) 

 

Total Operating Expenses 

OHSU’s total operating expenses on a consolidated basis increased by $77 million or 3.9% in fiscal year 2013, 
and $98 million or 5.2% in fiscal year 2012. Much of these increases in expenses was in direct correlation and 
support of the program growth driving the increases in revenue mentioned earlier. In fiscal year 2013, revenues 
grew by 10% supported by only 4% growth in expenses. In fiscal year 2012, revenue showed slower growth of 
5%, supported by an equal growth in expenses of 5%. However, strong growth in most components of 2012 
operating revenue were offset by a 10% reduction in gifts, grants and contracts due the schedule end of stimulus 
grant funding. 

Salaries, wages and benefits, which comprise over 61% of total expenses, increased by $64 million in 2013 and 
$77 million in 2012. In addition to increased staffing to support program growth, and regular increases in salaries 
to maintain market competitive compensation, in the 2012-2014 biennium there was a $21 million annual 
increase in required contributions for the defined benefit component of the PERS pension plan. About half of 
OHSU’s pension-eligible employees participate in PERS, with the other half covered by the University Pension 
Plan, a defined contribution plan. The PERS defined benefit increase was anticipated and planned for, and was 
mitigated by the implementation of key productivity initiatives. OHSU has announced changes to its benefits 
plans under which employees participating in PERS will start to contribute to its higher cost, phased in beginning 
in 2014. In addition, Oregon has entered legislation to reduce PERS costs, largely through lower cost of living 
allowances. The legislation is subject to review by the Oregon Supreme Court. The increase in compensation for 
2012 primarily reflected adjustments to market compensation levels for highly productive clinical staff, as well 
as recruitment for clinical programs that supported the growth in patient revenues seen in 2012. 

Services, supplies and other expenses increased $18 million or 3% in fiscal year 2013 and 2012, reflecting the 
nonlabor costs associated with the continued program growth mentioned above. These modest increases continue 
to reflect the ongoing focus on the University’s supply chain, especially in the clinical enterprise, the improved 
experience in self-insurance programs, and cost saving initiatives within central services.  

 $1,519,741  

 $497,650  

 $59,013   $93,112  

Fiscal Year 2013 

Net patient 
service revenue 

Gifts, grants 
and contracts 

Student tuition 
and fees, net 

Other revenue 

 
$1,441,157  

 $381,528  

 $60,020   $92,900  

Fiscal Year 2012 

Net patient 
service revenue 

Gifts, grants 
and contracts 

Student tuition 
and fees, net 

Other revenue 
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Depreciation and amortization, which represents the reduction in value of capital assets with the passage of time 
due, in particular, to the wear and tear, represented a steady 6% of the University’s total expenses in both fiscal 
years 2013 and 2012. Interest expense declined in fiscal year 2013 and 2012 due to the favorable restructuring of 
a substantial portion of OHSU’s debt in April 2012 and December 2012. Interest decreased $6 million or 18% in 
2013 and $2 million or 5% in 2012. 

Operating Expenses 

Fiscal Year 2013 and 2012 (Total $2.04 billion and $1.97 billion, respectively) 
(Dollars in thousands) 

 

Operating Expenses 
By Functional Classification 

(Dollars in thousands) 

2013 2012 2011

Instruction, research, and public service $ 384,801   381,684   376,102   
Clinical activity 1,323,280   1,256,940   1,169,095   
Auxiliary activities 10,662   10,872   9,738   
Internal service centers 6,054   5,690   6,717   
Student services 16,863   12,799   15,478   
Academic support 39,364   43,531   33,259   
Institutional support 55,361   48,424   48,622   
Operations, maintenance, and other 75,020   73,263   79,192   
Direct foundation expenditures 20,685   23,546   25,401   
Depreciation and amortization 112,453   111,174   106,646   

Total operating expenses $ 2,044,543   1,967,923   1,870,250   

 

 $1,258,102  
 $645,387  

 $112,453  
 $28,601  
Fiscal Year 2013 

Salaries, wages, 
and benefits 

Services, supplies, 
and other 

Depreciation and 
amortization 

Interest 

 
$1,194,176  

 $627,831  

 $111,174  
 $34,742  
Fiscal Year 2012 

Salaries, wages, 
and benefits 

Services, supplies, 
and other 

Depreciation and 
amortization 

Interest 
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Economic Outlook 

The general economy in both Oregon and the nation continues to recover, but at a slower pace than usual after a 
recession. Real growth in the U.S. GDP from the quarter ending June 30, 2012 to the quarter ending June 30, 
2013 was only 1.9%, well below the historical average since 1947 of 3.3%. The Oregon unemployment rate has 
fallen gradually, from 9.7% in August 2011, to 8.8% in August 2012 and 8.1% in August 2013, compared to 
7.3% nationally. Interest rates have increased somewhat from historical lows, with the 10-year Treasury rate 
rising from 1.66% at the end of fiscal year 2012 to 2.48% at the end of fiscal year 2013, after falling from 3.16% 
during the prior year, while the stock market rose by 18% in fiscal year 2013, compared to 3% in the prior year. 
Monetary policy to support economic recovery may keep interest rates relatively low for a protracted period of 
time, reducing earnings on cash and investment balances and increasing funding requirements for defined benefit 
pension plans. 

There is significant uncertainty in the national policy landscape, with the impact of sequestration on Medicare 
payments and federal funding of research; conflict in the process of approving federal budgets, continuing 
resolutions and increases to the debt ceiling; and the Federal Reserve’s anticipated tapering down of bond 
purchases. Healthcare reform is proceeding both nationally with the Affordable Care Act (ACA), and in Oregon 
with Medicaid transformation. The State of Oregon has agreed with the federal government to lower the rate of 
growth in Medicaid spending per member from 5.4% per year currently to 3.4% per year in the future, while 
maintaining quality and access. In return, the federal government is providing $1.9 billion over 5 years to support 
transformation. 

Oregon healthcare transformation includes the organization of Medicaid into coordinated care organizations 
(CCOs), charged with integrating physical, behavioral, and oral health for populations of Medicaid members 
across providers and care settings, under a global budget but with increased flexibility to implement new and 
innovative care models. Over the next several years, Oregon’s Medicaid enrollment is expected to increase from 
approximately 600,000 to 900,000 members, including coverage expansion under the ACA. OHSU is a founding 
member of Health Share of Oregon, a collaboration of public and private entities that have formed the principal 
CCO for the tri county region surrounding Portland. In addition, half of OHSU’s patients come from outside the 
tri county area, so the University will partner with CCOs across Oregon. A parallel reduction in the rate of 
growth of healthcare expenditures will likely be necessary in other healthcare programs to help bring federal and 
state budgets into balance over the long run. Oregon’s health plans for state employees and teachers expect to 
implement this coordinated care approach in the coming years. Government budget deficits are also putting 
downward pressure on funding for research and education. 

OHSU’s strategic plan calls for partnering to make Oregon a leader in health and science innovation, to improve 
the health and well being of Oregonians. The economic trends described above are major inputs to OHSU’s 
financial planning, and in response, the University is refining its strategy to accelerate the application of new 
knowledge and education across disciplines to better manage the health of populations. In the face of these 
challenges, results over the past several fiscal years, and especially in 2013, show that OHSU’s financial position 
is both very solid and getting stronger, with increased earnings from total university operations, significant 
philanthropic support, and a carefully managed balance sheet. The University’s long range financial plans and its 
fiscal year 2014 budget continue on this trajectory, with leadership in healthcare transformation and focused 
strategic investments in leading programs across education, research, patient care and outreach missions, while 
securing a broad based portfolio of revenues and improving productivity and business processes across the 
institution. 
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June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets 2013 2012

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,694   155,774   
Short-term investments 299,636   182,212   
Current portion of funds held by trustee 53,050   132,415   
Patients accounts receivable, net of bad debt allowances of

$12,787 in 2013 and $9,838 in 2012 217,850   207,307   
Student receivables 18,805   20,787   
Grant and contract receivables 34,723   28,923   
Interest receivable 2,746   2,330   
Current portion of pledges and estates receivable 39,090   21,262   
Other receivables, net 12,130   53,239   
Inventories, at cost 19,829   18,060   
Prepaid expenses 15,252   15,260   

Total current assets 809,805   837,569   

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,413,810   1,282,647   
Funds held by trustee – less current portion 25,643   39,121   

Long-term investments:
Long-term investments, restricted 403,076   380,089   
Long-term investments, unrestricted 571,749   511,573   

Total long-term investments 974,825   891,662   

Deferred financing costs, net 26,707   27,646   
Pledges and estates receivable – less current portion 102,618   56,119   
Other noncurrent assets 4,690   3,566   

Total noncurrent assets 2,548,293   2,300,761   
Total assets $ 3,358,098   3,138,330   
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Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Liabilities and Net Assets 2013 2012

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 17,872   18,467   
Current portion of long-term capital leases 613   4,034   
Current portion of self-funded insurance programs liability 18,303   18,678   
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 140,846   122,941   
Drafts payable 17,215   17,360   
Accrued salaries, wages, and benefits 64,315   65,554   
Compensated absences payable 55,411   52,933   
Deferred revenue 30,645   26,837   
Other current liabilities 3,663   762   

Total current liabilities 348,883   327,566   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt – less current portion 751,563   777,810   
Long-term capital leases – less current portion 690   629   
Liability for self-funded insurance programs – less current portion 43,521   42,550   
Liability for life income agreements 16,513   16,235   
Other noncurrent liabilities 26,982   24,843   

Total noncurrent liabilities 839,269   862,067   

Total liabilities 1,188,152   1,189,633   

Net position:
Net Investment in capital assets 721,618   629,095   
Restricted, expendable 396,599   309,035   
Restricted, nonexpendable 181,156   175,023   
Unrestricted 870,573   835,544   

Total net position 2,169,946   1,948,697   
Total liabilities and net position $ 3,358,098   3,138,330   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 2012

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenue, net of bad debt adjustments

of $62,266 in 2013 and $48,206 in 2012 $ 1,519,741   1,441,157   
Student tuition and fees, net 59,013   60,020   
Gifts, grants, and contracts 497,650   381,528   
Other revenue 93,112   92,900   

Total operating revenues 2,169,516   1,975,605   

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and benefits 1,258,102   1,194,176   
Services, supplies, and other 645,387   627,831   
Depreciation and amortization 112,453   111,174   
Interest 28,601   34,742   

Total operating expenses 2,044,543   1,967,923   

Operating income 124,973   7,682   

Nonoperating revenues, net:
Investment income and gain in fair value of investments 50,411   16,509   
State appropriations 30,146   35,389   
Other 2,627   3,379   

Total nonoperating revenues, net 83,184   55,277   

Net income before contributions for capital and other 208,157   62,959   

Other changes in net position:
Contributions for capital and other 9,013   4,059   
Nonexpendable donations 4,079   11,591   

Total other changes in net position 13,092   15,650   

Total increase in net position 221,249   78,609   

Net position – beginning of year 1,948,697   1,870,088   
Net position – end of year $ 2,169,946   1,948,697   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts for patient services $ 1,509,198   1,435,114   
Receipts from students 60,995   73,615   
Receipts of gifts, grants, and contracts 436,359   399,073   
Other receipts 134,357   50,613   
Payments to employees for services (1,256,863)  (1,184,125)  
Payments to suppliers (625,891)  (606,392)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 258,155   167,898   

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Federal direct loan proceeds 59,035   63,134   
Federal direct loan disbursements (60,397)  (56,784)  
Nonexpendable donations and life income agreements 30,146   11,710   
State appropriations 6,110   35,389   

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 34,894   53,449   

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt (18,466)  (17,666)  
Interest payments on long-term debt (10,632)  (18,858)  
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 126,365   343,473   
Repayment on debt (152,972)  (284,025)  
Acquisition of capital assets (245,358)  (157,650)  
Proceeds from sale of capital assets —    105   
Payments on capital leases (3,360)  (1,141)  
Contributions for capital and other 9,013   4,058   

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (295,410)  (131,704)  

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (1,359,054)  (1,255,911)  
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,278,335   1,089,650   
Interest on investments and cash balances 24,000   41,855   

Net cash used for investing activities (56,719)  (124,406)  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (59,080)  (34,763)  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 155,774   190,537   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 96,694   155,774   
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 2012

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income $ 124,973   7,682   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 112,453   111,174   
Provision for bad debts 62,266   47,883   
Interest expense reported as operating expense 28,601   34,742   
Net changes in assets and liabilities:

Patient accounts receivable (72,809)  (53,926)  
Student receivables 1,982   205   
Grant and contracts receivable (4,438)  8,184   
Pledges and estates receivable (64,327)  17,200   
Other receivables and other assets 41,245   (39,806)  
Inventories (1,769)  (2,425)  
Prepaid expenses 8   (1,745)  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,905   18,150   
Drafts payable (145)  2,453   
Accrued salaries, wages, and benefits (1,239)  9,431   
Compensated absences payable 2,478   620   
Other current liabilities 2,901   (130)  
Annuity payment liability 278   (899)  
Deferred revenue 6,146   2,255   
Liability for self-funded insurance programs 596   5,137   
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,050   1,713   

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 258,155   167,898   

Supplemental schedule of noncash capital and related financing
and investing activities:

Unrealized change in fair value of investments $ 27,025   (25,167)  
Gain on sale of capital assets 596   1,458   
Change in value of derivative liabilities (1,030)  1,802   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Organization 

As the only health sciences university and major academic health center in the State of Oregon 
(the State), Oregon Health & Science University (OHSU) is dedicated to the education and training 
of healthcare professionals, research, patient care, outreach and public service. In addition to the 
School of Medicine, School of Nursing, and School of Dentistry, and the joint College of Pharmacy 
with Oregon State University, OHSU comprises several other academic and research units, including 
the Vollum Institute for Advanced Biomedical Research, the Vaccine and Gene Therapy Institute, 
Oregon National Primate Research Center, OHSU Brain Institute, the Center for Research on 
Occupational and Environment Toxicology, Oregon Clinical and Translational Research Institute, 
and the Biomedical Information Communication Center. OHSU also comprises several clinical units, 
including OHSU Hospital (the Hospital), the Faculty Practice Plan (FPP), and the Child 
Development and Rehabilitation Center. Doernbecher Children’s Hospital is a unit of the Hospital 
serving pediatric patients. The Knight Cancer Institute is the only National Cancer Institute (NCI) 
designated cancer center in the State, and the Knight Cardiovascular Institute provides the State’s 
most comprehensive clinical and research heart program. In addition, OHSU operates a captive 
insurance company domiciled in Arizona for self-insurance purposes, OHSU Insurance Company 
(INSCO), which is blended in the accompanying financial statements. 

Pursuant to an act of the Oregon Legislature (the Act), on July 1, 1995, OHSU was restructured from 
one of seven component units of the Oregon University System (OUS) to an independent public 
corporation. OHSU remains a component unit of the State. 

The majority of the real property that constitutes OHSU’s main campus on Marquam Hill (and 
certain off-campus properties) in Portland is owned by the State. Pursuant to the Act, the State 
retained title of such real property and OHSU was granted exclusive care, custody, and control of 
such real property. To evidence this condition, the State and OHSU entered into a 99-year lease, 
dated July 1, 1995 (the State Lease), under which the State leased to OHSU all of the State’s leasable 
interest in such real property. Under the terms of the State Lease, the State may terminate the State 
Lease if, prior to such termination, the State causes the defeasance or discharge of all 
then-outstanding obligations of OHSU that were issued to finance improvements on the property 
subject to the State Lease or to refinance obligations of OHSU to the State. Under the State Lease, 
improvements include completed and partially completed buildings, fixtures, structures, and other 
improvements constructed on the property subject to the State Lease. In addition, OHSU was granted 
ownership of all personal property of the University, as it existed prior to the enactment of the Act. 

Oregon Health & Science University Foundation (OHSU Foundation) and Doernbecher Children’s 
Hospital Foundation (together, the Foundations) are separately incorporated nonprofit foundations 
affiliated with OHSU. The primary purpose of the Foundations is to raise money for OHSU research, 
scientific, charitable, and educational purposes and to promote support for Doernbecher Children’s 
Hospital. Consequently, the financial position and the results of operations of the Foundations are 
blended in the accompanying financial statements. 
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As of fiscal year 2013, the University Medical Group (UMG) is included as a blended component 
unit of OHSU. UMG is an Oregon public benefit corporation, organized and operated to provide 
billing and reporting services for the Faculty Practice Plan (FPP) within the School of Medicine at 
OHSU. The FPP Management Committee acts as the Board of Directors for UMG and is responsible 
for the day-to-day oversight of the clinical practice. As the Board of UMG is under the supervision 
and control of the FPP, and therefore OHSU, UMG is a blended component unit of OHSU. The net 
position contributed as a result of blending UMG as of June 30, 2013 was $5,892 including $1,039 in 
current year net income recorded in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
Also included as part of this transaction was $6,638 in cash and cash equivalents. 

(b) Accounting Standards 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America using the accrual basis of accounting. OHSU’s 
financial statements and note disclosures are based on all applicable Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and interpretations. OHSU uses proprietary fund 
accounting. 

OHSU prepares and presents its financial information in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments (GASB 34), known as the “Reporting Model” statement. GASB 34 established the 
requirements and reporting model for annual financial statements. GASB 34 requires that financial 
statements be accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the reporting 
entity in the form of “management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This reporting model also 
requires the use of a direct method cash flow statement. 

OHSU has also adopted GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities – an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 34. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for public colleges 
and universities within the financial reporting guidelines of GASB 34. 

(c) New Accounting Pronouncements 

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61 (GASB 61), The Financial Reporting Entity 
Omnibus, which amended the standards for reporting component units in a government’s financial 
statements. This standard was effective for fiscal year 2013. The adoption of GASB 61 modifies 
certain requirements for inclusion of component units as well as amends the criteria for blending 
component units with the primary government. Additionally, the statement requires that the primary 
government report an asset for its equity interest in its discretely presented component units. The 
primary government has evaluated the financial reporting entity in accordance with these provisions. 
The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on OHSU’s financial statements, although it did 
result in additional disclosures regarding the financial results of the blended component units. 

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62 (GASB 62), Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements. That statement supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
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for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. This 
standard was effective for fiscal year 2013. The adoption of GASB 62 did not have an impact on 
OHSU’s financial statements. 

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63 (GASB 63), Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which changes how governments 
organize their statements of financial position. This standard was effective for fiscal year 2013. The 
adoption of GASB 63 resulted in the establishment of net position. Additionally, OHSU’s 
transactions were evaluated against the criteria for “deferred outflows of resources” and “deferred 
inflows of resources,” and management determined that no material balances meet the definitions 
within the accounting standard. 

(d) Financial Reporting Entity 

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the financial reporting entity 
consists of Oregon Health & Science University as the primary government, and its component units, 
which are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as a) appointment of the voting majority of the 
component units’ board, and either (1) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or 
(2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial 
burden on the primary government, or (b) the component unit is financially dependent on and there is 
potential for the component unit to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific burdens 
on the primary government. 

Component units are reported as part of the reporting entity under the blended or discrete method of 
presentation. Blending involves merging the component unit data with the primary government. 
There are three situations when blending is allowed: (1) when the board of the component unit is 
substantially the same as that of the primary government and there is there is a financial benefit or 
burden relationship between the primary government and the component unit or management of the 
primary government has operational responsibility for the component unit, (2) when the component 
unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or otherwise 
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government even though it does not provide 
services directly to it, or (3) the component unit’s total debt outstanding, including leases, is 
expected to be repaid entirely or almost entirely with resources of the primary government. Oregon 
Health & Science University Foundation, Doernbecher Children’s Hospital Foundation, OHSU 
Insurance Company, and University Medical Group are considered to be blended component units as 
they serve the primary government exclusively. All transactions between OHSU and its blended 
component units are eliminated upon consolidation. 

Financial reports for INSCO, UMG, OHSU Foundation, and Doernbecher Children’s Hospital 
Foundation that include financial statements and required supplementary information are publicly 
available. These reports may be obtained by contacting the management of OHSU. 
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(e) Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the timing of when revenues and expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. OHSU reports as a proprietary fund within the 
governmental model. OHSU’s financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting with the economic resources measurement focus. Under this method of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred without 
regard to receipt or disbursement of cash. 

(f) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates in OHSU’s financial statements 
include patient accounts receivable allowances, third-party payor settlements, liabilities related to 
self-insurance programs, the fair value of investments, and the fair value of interest rate swap 
agreements. 

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

OHSU considers money market funds and all highly liquid investments with an original or remaining 
maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include $135,812 and 
$163,894 of overnight repurchase agreements, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, and 
short-term Treasury and Agency securities with an initial term of less than three months at June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(h) Investments 

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair values are determined based on quoted market prices, 
where available. Investments in joint ventures are recorded using the equity method of accounting. 
Alternative investments, which are not readily marketable, are carried at estimated fair values as 
provided by investment managers, primarily using net asset values. OHSU reviews and evaluates the 
values provided by the investment managers and agrees with the valuation methods and assumptions 
used in determining the fair value of the alternative investments. These estimated fair values may 
differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for those securities existed. 

Net unrealized gains and losses are included in the net unrealized gain (loss) in fair value of 
investments in nonoperating revenues in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position. Interest, dividends, and realized gains and losses on investments are included in 
nonoperating revenues as investment income when earned. 

(i) Inventories 

Inventories consist primarily of supplies in organized stores at various locations across the campus 
and in the Hospital. Inventories are recorded using several different methodologies dependent upon 
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the operational use of the supplies and system capabilities. OHSU utilizes standard cost, and average 
cost methodologies to record and report inventory value. 

(j) Capital Assets 

Capital asset acquisitions are stated at cost. Donated items are recorded on the basis of fair market 
value at the date of donation. OHSU capitalizes equipment additions greater than three thousand 
dollars and capital projects greater than ten thousand dollars. Maintenance, repairs, and minor 
replacements are expensed as incurred. When properties are retired or otherwise disposed of, the 
related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any gain or 
loss on disposition is recorded as other in nonoperating revenue. 

Interest on borrowed amounts during major construction is capitalized and amortized over the 
depreciable life of the related asset. During fiscal years 2013 and 2012, OHSU capitalized interest 
expense of approximately $4,075 and $2,505, respectively. This was net of approximately $132 and 
$164 of interest income, respectively, on unspent project funds. 

The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates calculated to 
amortize the cost of assets over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related lease term as 
follows: buildings and other improvements, 10 to 40 years; and equipment, 3 to 20 years. 

(k) Net Position Classifications 

Net position is classified into four net asset categories, in accordance with donor-imposed 
restrictions. 

• Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt represents the depreciated value of capital 
purchases, net of related debt. 

• Net position restricted, expendable carries externally imposed time or purpose restrictions that 
expire in the future. 

• Net position restricted, nonexpendable carries externally imposed restrictions that never 
expire. 

• Net position unrestricted carries no externally imposed restrictions. 

Investment income earned on donor-restricted endowment funds in excess of the annual spending 
distribution is accounted for in the expendable restricted net position category. 

The Foundations first apply restricted resources to an expense where an expense is incurred for a 
purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available. 
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A summary of restricted funds by restriction category for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 
is as follows: 

2013 2012
Restricted expendable:

Research $ 208,309   129,736   
Academic support 38,761   35,235   
Instruction 23,890   21,208   
Capital projects and planning 27,116   26,495   
Student aid 49,333   48,781   
Clinical support 27,132   25,651   
Institutional support 5,165   5,283   
Other 16,893   16,646   

396,599   309,035   
Restricted nonexpendable:

Research 21,578   21,206   
Instruction 39,689   37,972   
Clinical support 2,571   2,534   
Public service 1,113   1,069   
Academic support 63,482   62,466   
Student aid 38,286   36,738   
Other 14,437   13,038   

$ 181,156   175,023   
 

(l) Endowments 

The endowment corpus is accounted for in the restricted, nonexpendable net position category, and 
reported on the balance sheets as restricted long-term investments. The Foundations’ spending policy 
for endowment funds is determined by the Boards of Trustees and is based on a three-year moving 
average of the fair value of the endowment fund. The Boards of Trustees authorized a 4.5% 
distribution in each of the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

The Foundations’ management and investment of donor-restricted endowment funds are subject to 
the provisions of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) enacted by 
the State of Oregon in January 2008. 

The endowment fund investment pool (endowment fund) is the repository for funds from restricted, 
nonexpendable contributions where the principal amount cannot be used but a spending distribution, 
described below, can be used for the designated purpose. The endowment fund also holds 
quasi-endowment funds, which have been designated as endowment by the Foundations’ Boards of 
Trustees. All interest, dividends, and changes in fair value on the endowment fund are allocated to 
the appropriate unrestricted or restricted net position classification as specified by the donor at the 
time of receipt. Endowment accounts receive spending distributions subject to the Foundations’ 
Boards of Trustees approved spending policy, which provides a predetermined amount of total return 
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that can be spent for purposes designated by the donor. All expendable income restricted by the 
donor is carried as restricted, expendable net position until such time as the restriction has been met. 
At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the fair value of investments in the endowment fund was $378,100 and 
$349,800, respectively. 

Spending distributions were not made for certain endowment accounts during 2013 or 2012 because 
the market value of the individual endowment accounts dropped below the corpus. Spending 
distributions on these accounts will be resumed if specifically authorized by the Foundations’ Boards 
of Trustees or at the time that the earnings of the endowment are sufficient to restore the corpus and 
support the annual spending distribution. At June 30, 2013, the fair value of endowment accounts 
below corpus was $6,496 and the original corpus on these same accounts was $6,600. At June 30, 
2012, the fair value of endowment accounts below corpus was $63,500 and the original corpus on 
these same accounts was $65,700. 

(m) Federal Income Taxes 

OHSU, as a division of the State, is not subject to federal income taxes of the Internal Revenue 
Code, except for unrelated business income. 

(n) State Appropriations 

The Oregon State Legislature makes an appropriation to OHSU on a biennial basis. The 
appropriation is recognized as income over the related appropriation period as applicable eligibility 
requirements are met. 

(o) Research Activity 

Restricted grants receivable represent receivables for grant activities on which OHSU has met all 
applicable eligibility requirements and on which the funds are available from the granting agency. As 
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the grants receivable balance was $19,903 and $18,508, respectively, and 
was included in grant and contract receivables in the accompanying statements of financial position. 
The balance in deferred revenue as of year-end represents amounts advanced for which OHSU has 
not met all applicable eligibility requirements. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the grants deferred 
revenue balance was $17,531 and $14,030, respectively, and was included in deferred revenue in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

(p) Operating Revenues 

OHSU includes patient service revenue, student tuition and fees, gifts, grants and contracts, and 
other income from sales and services in operating revenues. These revenues are key components of 
the operations of OHSU. 

(q) Net Patient Service Revenue 

Net patient service revenue related to the Hospital, the Institute on Development and Disability, and 
the Faculty Practice Plan is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party 
payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated settlements under reimbursement 
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agreements with third-party payors. Settlement adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the 
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined. 

Services are rendered to patients under contractual arrangements with Medicaid and Medicare 
programs, various commercial insurance carriers and preferred provider and health maintenance 
organizations (PPOs and HMOs), which provide for payment or reimbursement at amounts different 
from published rates. Contractual adjustments represent the difference between published rates for 
services and amounts paid or reimbursed by these third-party payors. Medicaid and Medicare 
programs pay a prospective fixed price for the major portion of services rendered to hospital 
inpatients primarily on the basis of diagnosis related groups. Payments for Medicare and Medicaid 
outpatient services are based on prospectively determined rates. Reimbursement from commercial 
insurance carriers and PPOs and HMOs is based on prospectively negotiated rates or a percentage of 
charges. 

Included as prior year adjustments in net patient service revenue in fiscal year 2013 are an increase 
of $9,784 and $5,322 for fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

A summary of patient service revenues during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 

2013 2012

Gross patient charges $ 3,076,328   2,830,238   
Contractual discounts (1,494,321)  (1,340,875)  
Bad debt adjustments (62,266)  (48,206)  

Net patient service revenues $ 1,519,741   1,441,157   
 

(r) Student Tuition and Fees Revenues 

A summary of student tuition and fees revenues during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 is as 
follows: 

2013 2012

Gross student tuition $ 71,290   68,052   
Exemptions (12,277)  (8,032)  

Student tuition and fees revenues, net $ 59,013   60,020   
 

(s) Charity Care 

OHSU provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge 
or at amounts less than its published rates. Because OHSU does not pursue collection of amounts 
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. 
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OHSU maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. These records 
include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under its charity care 
policy. Charity care provided, measured as charges forgone, based on established rates, was 
$110,478 and $91,811 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(t) Pledges and Estates Receivable 

Pledges and estates receivable are recorded as receivables and revenues in the appropriate net asset 
category based upon donor-imposed restrictions and are reported at fair value at the date the promise 
is received. The majority of pledges are received within five years of the date the commitment was 
received. The majority of estates are received within one year. Pledges and estates receivable, less 
reserves for estimated uncollectible amounts, are discounted to their present value using rates that 
range from 0.30% to 4.82%. 

(u) Life Income Agreements 

The Foundations have been named as remainder beneficiaries for various life income agreements. 
Life income agreements provide for contractual payments to designated beneficiaries for a specific 
period, after which the remaining principal and interest revert to the Foundations. Contributions 
received under life income agreements are included in long-term investments, restricted, with the 
corresponding commitment to the beneficiary included in liability for life income agreements in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

(v) Reclassifications of Previously Issued Financial Statements 

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year 
presentation. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

OHSU holds substantially all of its cash, cash equivalents, and investment balances at financial institutions. 
All of OHSU’s cash is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation subject to investment limits. 
Additionally, a substantial portion of investments are collateralized deposits as required under Oregon 
Revised Statutes or held in liquid securities backed by the full faith of the U.S. government. 
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OHSU’s investment policies are approved by the Board of Directors and are accounted for as prescribed by 
GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools. Changes in the fair value of investments are included in nonoperating revenues. The 
composition of investments at fair value at June 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 

2013 2012

Short-term investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,127   1,688   
Mutual funds 97,468   53,230   
U.S. government securities 17,673   27,330   
U.S. agency securities 39,770   15,510   
Corporate obligations 63,629   38,382   
Fixed income 79,969   46,072   

299,636   182,212   

Funds held by trustee, current portion:
Cash and cash equivalents 32,983   132,313   
Fixed Income 20,037   —    
Other 30   102   

53,050   132,415   

Funds held by trustee – less current portion:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,991   15,469   
U.S. government securities 757   4,273   
U.S. agency securities 8,787   19,379   
Fixed Income 3,108   —    

25,643   39,121   

Long-term investments – less current portion:
Cash and cash equivalents 37,843   39,647   
U.S. government securities 134,397   146,705   
U.S. agency securities 42,661   35,068   
Corporate obligations 199,596   142,977   
Fixed income 134,395   131,906   
Equities 190,731   171,982   
Alternative investments 112,042   119,302   
Joint ventures and partnerships 58,517   58,759   
Real estate investments and other 64,643   45,316   

974,825   891,662   
Total investments, all categories $ 1,353,154   1,245,410   
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(3) Investments and Related Policies 

(a) Interest Rate Risk 

As of June 30, 2013, OHSU had the following investments and maturities at fair value: 

Credit Rating Maturity
Standard More than
& Poor’s Less than 10 years

Investment type or equivalent 1 year 1 – 5 years 6 – 10 years or none Total

Cash and money market funds n/a $ 84,944  —  —  —  84,944  
U.S. government securities n/a 20,936  107,802  21,308  2,781  152,827  
U.S. agency securities n/a 45,466  45,752  —  —  91,218  
Domestic equity securities n/a —  —  —  57,754  57,754  
International equity securities —  —  —  132,977  132,977  
Commercial paper A-1+ 14,440  —  —  —  14,440  

A-1 84,810  —  —  —  84,810  
U.S. Corporate securities AA+ 4,011  1,882  —  —  5,893  

AA 7,155  5,889  389  —  13,433  
AA- 22,533  10,020  —  —  32,553  
A+ 1,763  7,770  —  —  9,533  
A 3,957  28,689  1,138  —  33,784  
A- 8,464  5,746  4,143  —  18,353  

BBB+ —  1,284  3,453  —  4,737  
BBB 6,423  32,985  3,052  667  43,127  
BBB- 276  946  504  —  1,726  

Non-U.S. Corporate securities AAA 349  4,391  —  —  4,740  
AA —  24,447  —  —  24,447  
AA- 19,686  7,741  398  —  27,825  
A+ 7,498  213  —  —  7,711  
A 1,601  18,893  209  —  20,703  
A- —  711  2,551  —  3,262  

BBB+ —  341  818  —  1,159  
BBB —  6,822  1,981  —  8,803  
BBB- 861  174  402  —  1,437  

Interest receivable various 30  —  —  —  30  
Asset backed securities AAA 29,426  32,726  259  —  62,411  

AA+ 482  4,250  844  —  5,576  
A —  870  —  —  870  

Joint ventures and partnerships n/a —  —  —  58,517  58,517  
Mutual funds – fixed income only AAA 3,675  537  8,052  31  12,295  

AA 2,547  64  3,914  60  6,585  
A 2,145  112  4,798  20  7,075  

BBB 4,692  147  3,407  7  8,253  
BB 282  26  5,383  —  5,691  
B 145  26  5,404  —  5,575  

Below B —  8  2,251  —  2,259  
Not Rated 3  52  366  2  423  

Municipal Bonds AAA 751  —  —  —  751  
AA 7,149  4,458  —  —  11,607  
A 6,392  2,495  —  —  8,887  

Mutual funds, other n/a —  —  —  112,839  112,839  
Alternative investments n/a —  —  —  112,042  112,042  
Real estate investments and other n/a —  —  —  49,272  49,272  

$ 392,892  358,269  75,024  526,969  1,353,154  
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As of June 30, 2012, OHSU had the following investments and maturities at fair value: 

Credit Rating Maturity
Standard & More than

Poor’s Less than 10 years
Investment type or equivalent 1 year 1 – 5 years 6 – 10 years or none Total

Cash and money market funds n/a $ 189,117  —  —  —  189,117  
U.S. government securities n/a 37,386  111,553  24,904  4,465  178,308  
U.S. agency securities AAA 30,882  38,360  715  —  69,957  
Domestic equity securities n/a —  —  —  50,351  50,351  
International equity securities n/a —  —  —  121,631  121,631  
International debt securities AAA 1,376  658  546  1,779  4,359  

AA —  1,120  641  148  1,909  
A 332  494  905  2,573  4,304  

BBB —  —  798  —  798  
BB —  681  66  —  747  
B —  58  —  —  58  

Commercial paper A-1+ 22,673  —  —  —  22,673  
A-1 27,415  —  —  —  27,415  

Corporate debt securities AA+ —  —  1,845  —  1,845  
AA 1,290  4,129  398  —  5,817  
AA- 1,215  —  —  —  1,215  
A+ —  317  —  —  317  
A 203  17,624  1,448  —  19,275  
A- 1,597  5,987  3,361  —  10,945  

BBB+ 258  917  3,800  388  5,363  
BBB 1,950  32,731  3,019  —  37,700  
BBB- —  1,558  804  —  2,362  

Non-U.S. corporate debt securities AAA 3,651  8,124  —  —  11,775  
AA 6,430  17,077  —  —  23,507  
AA- 17,894  463  —  —  18,357  
A+ 7,469  693  —  —  8,162  
A 2,502  15,709  —  —  18,211  
A- —  —  1,300  —  1,300  

BBB+ —  —  1,190  —  1,190  
BBB 3,510  7,321  2,275  —  13,106  
BBB- —  912  —  —  912  

Interest receivable various 102  —  —  —  102  
Asset backed securities AAA 9,774  32,053  296  —  42,123  

AA+ 409  25,256  860  436  26,961  
BBB+ —  901  —  —  901  

Joint ventures and partnerships n/a —  —  —  58,759  58,759  
Mutual funds – fixed income only AAA 4,871  482  2,414  1,517  9,284  

AA 1,348  119  427  137  2,031  
A 2,573  137  361  342  3,413  

BBB 3,309  121  411  466  4,307  
BB 261  26  126  18  431  
B 19  15  78  11  123  

Below B 3  5  58  9  75  
Not Rated 3  45  24  60  132  

Municipal Bonds AAA 3,244  —  —  —  3,244  
AA 2,454  4,217  —  —  6,671  
A 3,791  12,228  —  —  16,019  

Mutual funds-other n/a —  —  —  67,525  67,525  
Alternative investments n/a —  —  —  119,302  119,302  
Real estate investments and other n/a —  —  —  31,021  31,021  

$ 389,311  342,091  53,070  460,938  1,245,410  
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All Standard & Poor’s credit ratings are as of June 30 of the respective year-end. 

OHSU held $68,857 and $69,985 of asset-backed securities collateralized primarily by auto loans 
and credit card receivables and collateralized mortgage obligations as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. These securities are valued at their estimated fair values. The valuation of these 
securities is sensitive to principal prepayments, which may result from a decline in interest rates, and 
they are sensitive to an increase in average maturity, which may result from interest rate increases 
that lead to decreasing prepayments. These factors may increase the interest rate volatility of this 
component of OHSU’s investment portfolio. 

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, OHSU had certain joint ventures and partnerships, alternative 
investments, real estate investments, and other investments. These investments may contain elements 
of both credit and market risk. Such risks may include limited liquidity, absence of regulatory 
oversight, dependence upon key individuals, and nondisclosure of portfolio composition. Because 
these investments are not readily marketable, their estimated fair value is subject to uncertainty and, 
therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for such 
investments existed. Such differences could be material. 

OHSU investment policies vary based on the investment objectives of the portfolio. The operating 
and trustee held portfolios seek to preserve principal with the intent of maximizing total return within 
appropriate risk parameters. Maturities of securities in these portfolios are based upon returns 
available at the time of investing while considering cash requirements of the organization. 

The endowment portfolio, which is included in long-term investments, restricted, in the 
accompanying statements of financial position, seeks to produce a predictable and stable payout 
stream that increases over time, while achieving growth of corpus. The Foundations’ investment 
policies are set based on the investment objectives of the portfolio. Each portfolio has its own Board 
authorized asset allocation guideline. The current fund seeks to preserve principal and generate an 
above average rate of return. The current fund may invest in cash, cash equivalents, and fixed 
income securities, which have a maturity or average life of five years or less and the average 
weighted maturity of the portfolio shall not exceed three years. The endowment fund may invest in 
cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities, U.S. and non-U.S. equity securities, and other 
alternative investments. Fixed income securities held in this fund shall have a medium to long 
average duration (three to eight years). 

The charitable gift annuity pool seeks to produce a relatively predictable and stable payout stream 
that will satisfy the funds distribution obligations while achieving long-term capital appreciation of 
the overall fund balance. The charitable gift annuity pool may invest in cash and cash equivalents, 
U.S. and non-U.S. equities, fixed income, and real estate. Charitable trusts are managed to produce a 
relatively predictable and stable payout stream that will satisfy the funds distribution obligations 
while achieving long-term capital appreciation of the overall fund balance. Charitable trust 
investment objectives and asset allocation guidelines are determined based on the individual 
circumstances of each trust account. Allowable investments include cash and cash equivalents, 
U.S. and non-U.S. equities, fixed income, and real estate. 
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(b) Credit Risk 

The operating and trustee held portfolios require the following minimum ratings or better from 
Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s at the date of purchase: 

Minimum
Minimum Standard &
Moody’s Poor’s

rating rating

Bankers acceptances A-1 P-1
Commercial paper A-1 P-1
Certificates of deposit A A-1/P-1
Deposit notes A A-1/P-1
Eurodollar CDs or eurodollar time deposits A A-1/P-1
Yankee CDs A-1 P-1
Corporate debt Baa3 BBB-
Foreign government and supranational debt Baa3 BBB-
Insurance company annuity contracts and

guaranteed investment contracts Aaa AAA
Mortgage pass-through securities Aaa AAA
Structured securities including asset-backed securities Aaa AAA
Pooled investments Aa AA

 

The endowment portfolio requires a weighted average credit rating of each fixed income portfolio 
(within the pool) of A or higher and an avoidance of the prospect of credit failure or risk of 
permanent loss. Issues of state or municipal agencies are prohibited, except under unusual 
circumstances. The endowment portfolio may hold up to a maximum of 10% of the fixed income 
portion of the fund in below investment grade (but rated B or higher by Moody’s or Standard & 
Poor’s) fixed income securities. 

The charitable gift annuity and charitable trust investments require a minimum credit quality rating 
in investment grade Baa/BBB bond investments and a minimum rating of A1-P1 for investments in 
commercial paper. 

(c) Concentration of Credit Risk 

OHSU’s operating and trustee held portfolios limit investments in any one issue to a maximum of 
10%, depending upon the investment type, except for issues of the U.S. government or agencies of 
the U.S. government, which may be held without limitation. The endowment and charitable gift 
annuity portfolios limit investments in any one issue to a maximum of 5%, except for issues of the 
U.S. government or agencies of the U.S. government, which may also be held without limitation. 
The charitable trusts place no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. As of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, OHSU had no investments in excess of the thresholds discussed above. 
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(d) Foreign Currency Risk 

OHSU’s investment policies permit investments in international equities and other asset classes, 
which can include foreign currency exposure. The operating and trustee held portfolios allow 
investments in Eurodollar CDs. The endowment portfolio allows up to 35% of the portfolio to be 
invested in international equities and up to 25% of the fixed income portion of the portfolio to be 
invested in non-U.S. dollar denominated bonds. The investment policy for the charitable gift annuity 
portfolio allows for up to 10% of the portfolio to be invested in international equities. The charitable 
trust investments are permitted to include international equities and the amount of the investment is 
determined based on the individual circumstances of each trust account. 

The following table details the fair value of foreign denominated securities by currency type: 

Value (U.S. dollar)
Foreign currency 2013 2012

Australian dollar $ 1,234   70   
Brazilian real —    487   
British sterling pound 4,462   6,172   
Canadian dollar 1,613   —    
Chilean Peso —    558   
Euro 3,231   3,307   
Hungarian forint —    609   
South Korean won —    672   
Malaysian ringgit —    666   
Mexican peso —    1,503   
New Zealand dollar —    66   
Polish zloty —    875   
South African rand —    589   
Swiss Franc 1,810   1,548   
Turkish lira —    651   

Total $ 12,350   17,773   
 

(4) Due from/to Contractual Agencies 

Due from/to contractual agencies represents amounts receivable from or payable to the State Medicaid 
Program (Medicaid), the Federal Medicare Program (Medicare), and other contractual agencies. As of 
June 30, 2013, $18,624 was the net amount due from Medicaid, $6,164 was the net amount due to 
Medicare, and $8,743 was due to various contractual agency related settlement activity. As of June 30, 
2012, $20,214 was the net amount due from Medicaid, $8,764 was the net amount due to Medicare, and 
$9,564 was due to contractual agencies related to other settlement activity. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the 
net receivable is included in patient accounts receivable in the balance sheets. 
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(5) Capital Assets 

Capital assets for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are listed by category below: 

2013 2012

Land and land improvements $ 72,443   72,443   
Buildings and other improvements 1,550,174   1,511,882   
Equipment 726,187   681,102   
Construction in progress 234,906   83,860   
Accumulated depreciation (1,169,900)  (1,066,640)  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,413,810   1,282,647   
 

The following is a summary of capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:  

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,

2012 Increases Decreases 2013

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 72,443  —  —  72,443  
Construction in progress 83,860  217,269  (66,223) 234,906  

Total capital assets
not depreciated 156,303  217,269  (66,223) 307,349  

Other capital assets:
Buildings and other improvements 1,511,882  39,464  (1,172) 1,550,174  
Equipment 681,102  56,803  (11,718) 726,187  

Total other capital
assets 2,192,984  96,267  (12,890) 2,276,361  

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and other improvements (551,334) (56,196) 931  (606,599) 
Equipment (515,306) (58,203) 10,208  (563,301) 

Total accumulated
depreciation (1,066,640) (114,399) 11,139  (1,169,900) 

Other capital assets, net 1,126,344  (18,132) (1,751) 1,106,461  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,282,647  199,137  (67,974) 1,413,810  
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Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,

2011 Increases Decreases 2012

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 58,770  13,673  —  72,443  
Construction in progress 59,406  126,203  (101,749) 83,860  

Total capital assets
not depreciated 118,176  139,876  (101,749) 156,303  

Other capital assets:
Buildings and other improvements 1,447,556  65,157  (831) 1,511,882  
Equipment 651,218  54,366  (24,482) 681,102  

Total other capital
assets 2,098,774  119,523  (25,313) 2,192,984  

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and other improvements (498,703) (53,189) 558  (551,334) 
Equipment (481,092) (57,985) 23,771  (515,306) 

Total accumulated
depreciation (979,795) (111,174) 24,329  (1,066,640) 

Other capital assets, net 1,118,979  8,349  (984) 1,126,344  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,237,155  148,225  (102,733) 1,282,647  

 

During fiscal year 2007, OHSU sold all of the real property that currently constitutes Oregon Graduate 
Institute’s main campus, including all land and buildings and other improvements, in the amount of 
approximately $44,400 to an unrelated third party. Simultaneously, OHSU entered into an operating lease 
with the third party to lease the entire campus with a seven-year term with two additional three-year 
options to extend the lease at the option of OHSU. OHSU deferred a gain in the amount of approximately 
$16,300, which is being ratably recognized over the minimum lease term of seven years. During fiscal 
years 2013 and 2012, OHSU recognized approximately $2,338 and $2,338, respectively, of this gain, 
which is included in other nonoperating revenues in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position. 

(6) Compensated Absences Payable 

Vacation pay for classified employees is earned at 8 to 24 hours per month, depending on the length of 
service, with a maximum accrual of up to 364 hours per employee and a maximum payment upon 
separation of up to 364 hours. Vacation pay for unclassified employees is earned at 14.67 hours per month, 
with a maximum accrual of 256 hours and a maximum payment upon separation of 176 hours. 

Sick leave is recorded as an expense when paid. Sick leave for employees is earned at the rate of 8 hours 
per month with no restrictions on maximum hours accrued. No liability exists for terminated employees. 
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(7) Retirement Plans 

Various pension plans are available for all qualified employees. Many employees participate in the State of 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which includes a defined benefit plan (PERS Tier 1 
and Tier 2/OPSRP) and a defined contribution plan. All qualified employees hired subsequent to 
August 29, 2003 who elect PERS benefits are enrolled in the OPSRP. PERS, a multi-employer retirement 
plan, is administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board (Retirement Board) under the guidelines 
of Oregon Revised Statutes. 

OHSU’s total payroll, excluding fringe benefits, for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $955,001 
and $914,971, respectively. Payroll applicable for employees covered by PERS for the years ended 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $378,893 and $392,494, respectively. PERS collects contributions from both 
employers and employees for the purpose of funding retirement benefits. Beginning July 1, 1979, the 
employees’ contribution for both plans under PERS has been assumed and paid by OHSU at the 6% rate 
set by law. The employer contribution rate is established by the Retirement Board based upon actuarial 
valuations, which are performed once every two years to determine the level of employer contributions. 
The employer contribution rates for the PERS Tier 1 and Tier 2 were 9.12% from July 1, 2011 – June 30, 
2013. The employer contribution rate for the OPSRP was 7.58% from July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2013. 

The State of Oregon PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information, including 10-year historical trend information showing the 
accumulation of sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. That report may be obtained by writing to 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 73, Portland, Oregon 97207-0073. 

Information regarding normal retirement age, early retirement age, and vesting can be found on the Oregon 
PERS web site at http://pershelp.pers.state.or.us/Robo/. 
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Effective July 1, 1996, OHSU established the University Pension Plan (UPP). The UPP is a defined 
contribution plan, which is available to employees as an alternative to PERS. Employees become fully 
vested in employer contributions over a three to four year period (depending on collective bargaining 
agreements) or upon reaching age 50. Contribution levels are determined by the Board of Directors of 
OHSU. In fiscal years 2013 and 2012, all employer contributions to the plan were 6% of salary and 
employee contributions were an additional 6%. Currently, OHSU is funding the employee portion of the 
contributions. 

2013 2012 2011

PERS:
Employer contribution $ 32,272   33,458   12,487   
Employee contribution (1) 22,739   23,549   23,925   

$ 55,011   57,007   36,412   

UPP:
Employer contribution $ 27,072   24,220   21,598   
Employee contribution (1) 27,072   24,220   21,598   

$ 54,144   48,440   43,196   

(1) Of the employees’ share, the employer paid $49,811, $47,769, and $45,523 including both
PERS and UPP, in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

 

OHSU offers all eligible employees, full and part time, an option to participate in one of two tax-deferred 
savings plans through the University Voluntary Savings Program. The 403(b) Plan is often referred to as a 
tax-deferred investment plan while the 457(b) Plan is referred to as a deferred compensation plan. Both 
plans offer a variety of investment options. The contribution and investment earnings under these plans are 
tax deferred, which may be accumulated by the employee for distribution at a future date. All contributions 
to these plans are made by the employee and are fully vested at the time of the contribution. 

The Foundations have defined contribution plans available for substantially all employees. The plans are 
funded through the purchase of a group annuity contract with an insurance company at a discretionary 
amount equal to 12% of eligible compensation. Contributions are fully vested after five years. The 
Foundations contributed $823 and $614 for the purchase of retirement annuities during the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(8) Postemployment Healthcare Plan 

OHSU administers a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan. OHSU retiring employees are 
eligible to receive medical coverage for self and spouse until age 65. Retirees must pay the full premium 
for the coverage elected. The plan funding policy provides for contributions at amounts sufficient to fund 
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Full-time active employees also make contributions. Participating 
retirees pay their own monthly premiums based on a blended premium rate since retirees are pooled 
together with active employees for insurance rating purposes. 
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The following table shows the components of OHSU’s annual other postretirement employee benefit 
(OPEB) cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and 
changes in OHSU’s net OPEB obligation to the plan: 

2013 2012 2011

Annual required contribution $ 1,692 2,207 1,719
Interest on net OPEB obligation 225 173 145

Annual OPEB cost 1,917 2,380 1,864

Contributions made 1,020 1,020 1,008

Increase in OPEB obligation 897 1,360 856

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of fiscal
year 6,431 5,071 4,215

Net OPEB obligation – end of fiscal year $ 7,328 6,431 5,071

Percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed 53% 43% 54%

 

The funded status of the OHSU plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation date is as follows: 

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
accrued accrued percentage

Actuarial liability liability Covered of covered
value of assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded ratio payroll payroll

Actuarial valuation date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

January 1, 2012 $ —  19,894  19,894  —% $ 791,382  2.5%
 

The actuarially determined amounts above use an assumed discount rate of 3.5% in the January 1, 2012 
valuation. The assumed healthcare cost trend rate was 8.75% in 2013, declining gradually to 4% in 2032 
and remaining at 4% thereafter. 

The actuarial cost method used is the projected unit credit method. Actuarial valuations involve estimates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future; 
therefore, actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to 
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term 
perspective. Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the plan at the time 
of valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members to that point. 
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(9) Long-Term Debt, Bonds, and Capital Leases 

Long-term debt, including related unamortized issuance costs, and capital leases at June 30, 2013 and 2012 
are as follows: 

2013 2012

Debt service payment agreement (DSPA) $ 12,290   14,701   
Bonds payable, revenue bonds, Series 2009 A and B 151,803   151,308   
Bonds payable, revenue bonds, Series 2002 A and B 1,422   154,578   
Bonds payable, revenue bonds, Series 1998 A and B 2,808   3,212   
Bonds payable, revenue bonds, Series 1995 A and B 57,934   56,938   
Bonds payable, revenue bonds, Series 2012 A, B, C, D,

and E 483,683   351,158   
Tenancy in Common Agreement (TIC) – CLSB – OUS

Bonds 29,541   30,130   
Local improvement district agreements 28,219   30,167   
B of A capital equipment loans 1,735   3,971   
Hood River/The Dalles Eye Clinic —    114   
Other capital leases 1,303   4,663   
Less current portion of debt and capital leases (18,485)  (22,501)  

$ 752,253   778,439   
 

(a) Debt Service Payment Agreement (DSPA) 

In connection with OHSU becoming an independent public corporation, OHSU entered into a DSPA 
dated July 1, 1995 with OUS. The Act, which established OHSU as an independent public 
corporation, required that OUS and OHSU establish, in a written agreement, the responsibility of 
OHSU for the payment to OUS of amounts sufficient to pay when due all principal, interest, and any 
other charges on bonds, certificates of participation, financing agreements, or other agreements for 
the borrowing of money issued prior to the effective date of the Act for equipment or projects for 
OHSU. Payment under the terms of the DSPA by OHSU represents full satisfaction of any legal 
obligation related to such outstanding indebtedness. 

(b) Tenancy in Common (TIC) Agreement – Collaborative Life Sciences Building (CLSB) 

During fiscal year 2011, OHSU entered into a joint construction project with Oregon University 
Systems (OUS) to build the Collaborative Life Sciences Building (CLSB) on OHSU’s Schnitzer 
Campus located in Portland’s South Waterfront to be jointly owned, developed, and operated. As 
partial consideration for OHSU’s receipt of 50% undivided percentage interest in the tenancy in 
common of the CLSB, OHSU agreed to pay to OUS one half of each scheduled 2011 Series F/G 
(OUS Bonds) Bond debt service payment issued to fund the construction of the project, not later than 
30 days before the State of Oregon is required to make each scheduled OUS Bonds debt service 
payment. Payment under the terms of the Tenancy in Common Agreement by OHSU represents full 
satisfaction of any legal obligation related to such outstanding indebtedness. 
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(c) Bonds Payable 

During fiscal year 1996, OHSU issued Insured Revenue Bonds Series A and B (1995 Revenue 
Bonds) for the purpose of construction and rehabilitation of facilities, the acquisition of equipment, 
to refund a portion of the DSPA, to fund a debt service reserve account, and to pay certain costs of 
issuance of the 1995 Revenue Bonds. In May 2012, the 1995B Series Bonds were currently refunded 
as part of the 2012 Series Bonds, further described below. The remaining 1995 Revenue Bonds 
mature beginning July 1, 2008 through July 1, 2028 and require semiannual interest payments at 
5.35% to 5.75%. The 1995 Revenue Bonds are limited obligations of OHSU and are secured by 
OHSU’s gross revenues. Pursuant to the Oregon Uniform Revenue Bond Act, the 1995 Revenue 
Bonds are not general obligations of OHSU and are payable solely from the revenue pledged. 

During fiscal year 2003, OHSU issued Insured Revenue Bonds Series 2002A, a series of fixed-rate 
bonds, and 2002B, a series of auction rate securities (2002 Revenue Bonds), for the purpose of 
construction and rehabilitation of facilities, the acquisition of equipment, to fund the debt service 
reserve account and to pay certain costs of issuance of the 2002 Revenue Bonds. A portion of the 
2002A Series Bonds were advance refunded during fiscal year 2012 as part of the 2012 Series Bond 
Issuance. Additionally the entire 2002B Series was refunded during fiscal year 2013 and are no 
longer outstanding as of June 30, 2013. 

The 2009 Series A Revenue Bonds mature beginning July 1, 2033 through July 1, 2039. The 
Series A Revenue Bonds require interest payments semiannually. The interest rate on the Series A 
Revenue Bonds is fixed and ranges from 5.750% and 5.875%. The 2009A Revenue Bonds are 
limited obligations of OHSU and are secured by OHSU’s gross revenues. Pursuant to the Oregon 
Uniform Revenue Bond Act, the 2009 Revenue Bonds are not general obligations of OHSU and are 
payable solely from revenue pledged. 

In May 2012, as part of a comprehensive bond portfolio restructuring, OHSU issued refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A, Series 2012C and Series 2012D, which refinanced over 50% of its 
currently outstanding debt portfolio, in order to reduce interest expense as well as convert its 
previously issued auction rate mode bonds to variable rate demand bonds backed by either 
irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit or as a direct placement. In this refunding, the 1995 Current 
Interest Bonds, 1995B, 1998A, 1998B, and 2002B, Bonds were currently refunded in their entirety 
as well as advance refunding of $38,550 of the Series 2002A bonds, which were defeased but still 
outstanding as of June 30, 2012. As part of the refinancing, OHSU realized deferred gain on 
extinguishment of debt of $3,212 for the 1998AB bonds and $1,737 for the 2002B bonds, 
respectively, which will be amortized over the life of the original bonds. The 2012A Series was 
issued as fixed rate bonds with maturities July 1, 2012 to July 1, 2028 and rates from 2.0% to 5.0%. 
The Series 2012C variable rate bonds, mature July 1, 2012 to July 1, 2027, and the 2012D bonds, 
direct placement variable rate bonds mature July 1, 2012 to July 1, 2032. Due to OHSU’s stable 
credit worthiness, existing debt service reserve requirements on the refunded bonds in excess of 
$9 million was released and applied to downsize the refunding bond par, resulting in further savings. 
Then Series 2012E bonds, fixed rate bonds, refinanced the remaining 2002A bonds. The 2013E were 
issued December 20th, 2012 and will mature July 1, 2032. 



DRAFT   10/16/2013   9:12 AM   204565_13_OregonHealth&ScienceUniv_FS.docx  

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

(Amounts in thousands) 

 44 (Continued) 

Additionally, during the refunding process, OHSU simultaneously issued approximately $85 million 
of new tax-exempt revenue bonds, the 2012B Series, to pay for certain costs of construction and 
other costs of issuance for the expanded CLSB Skourtes Tower project, which will become the new 
OHSU School of Dentistry. The 2012B-1, B-2 and B-3 bonds, all variable rate demand bonds, have 
maturities July 1, 2040 to July 1, 2042. 

As part of the 2012 financing, OHSU entered into multiple credit enhancement facilities, including 
irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit with Union Bank and U.S. Bank NA as noted in the table 
below 

2012 BCD Variable Rate Debt as of June 30, 2013
LT Ratings

Bond Par Facility S&P/moodys/
Series Facility counterparty (000’s) matures Fitch Reset

2012 B-1 Union Bank – LOC $ 28,525  5/15/2017 A+ / A2 / A weekly
2012 B-2 Union Bank – LOC 28,525  5/15/2017 A+ / A2 / A weekly
2012 B-3 Union Bank – LOC 28,520  5/15/2017 A+ / A2 / A daily
2012 C US Bank, NA – LOC 18,210  11/15/2015 AA- / Aa2 / AA- daily
2012 D US Bank, NA – Direct Placement 86,300  11/1/2016 AA- / Aa2 / AA- monthly

$ 190,080  

 

The Letters of Credit will fund any put made by bondholders that is not successfully remarketed. In 
the event the standby Letter of Credit funds a put by bondholders, no principal payments are due for 
367 days. 

The average interest rate on the combined 2012B Bonds at June 30, 2013 is 0.07%, the rate on the 
2012Cs is 0.06% and the 2012Ds, which are a direct placement with U.S. Bank, NA is 0.706%. All 
interest payments on the 2012B, 2012C and 2012D Bonds are due and payable to the bondholders on 
the first business day of each month. 

Under the terms of the outstanding 1995 and 2009 Revenue Bonds, OHSU is required to maintain 
funds held by a trustee for reserve requirements for each of these series of bonds in amounts 
sufficient to pay specified principal and interest payments. The indenture and other loan agreements 
contain, among other things, provisions placing restrictions on additional borrowings and leases and 
require the maintenance of a debt service coverage ratio. Management believes that it is in 
compliance with its debt covenants. 

(d) Local Improvement District Assessments 

OHSU initially entered into various Local Improvement District agreements (LIDs) with the City of 
Portland, Oregon during fiscal years 2007 and 2008 for real improvements to Portland’s South 
Waterfront District, of which $30 million of the initial debt is considered to be nonrecourse 
obligations to OHSU. During fiscal year 2012, OHSU entered into additional LIDs with the City of 
Portland for real improvements to the same Portland South Waterfront District for $4.8 million. All 
LID debt is scheduled to be repaid in semiannual installments with final maturities between ten and 
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twenty years at interest rates ranging between 4.19% and 6.00%. The total outstanding balances due 
as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $28.2 million and $30.2 million, respectively, and have been 
included in long-term debt in the statements of financial position. 

(e) Interest Rate Swap Agreement 

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, OHSU held a total of two interest rate swap agreements, respectively 
(collectively, the swaps). The balances of all currently held swaps as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 
follows: 

Notional amount June 30 Fair value June 30
2013 2012 2013 2012

Swap:
2005A Swap UBS $ —    42,725    —    (8,509)   
2005B Swap UBS —    42,700    —    (8,510)   
2005A US Bank Swap 40,925   —    (5,838)  —    
2005B US Bank Swap 40,900   —    (5,838)  —    

$ 81,825   85,425   (11,676)  (17,019)  
 

The notional amounts of the outstanding swaps and the principal amounts of the associated debt 
decline over time and terminate on July 1, 2028. The Swaps are currently callable as of June 30, 
2013 and 2012. Under each agreement OHSU makes fixed rate interest payments of 3.459% to the 
counterparty and receives variable rate payment computed as 62.67% of the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 0.177%. The fair value represents the estimated amount that OHSU 
would pay or receive if the swap agreements were terminated at year-end, taking into account current 
interest rates and the creditworthiness of the underlying counterparty. Total cash payments made to 
swap counterparties were $2,511 and $4,230 during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Each of the Swaps were novated during fiscal year 2013, and reassigned to a new 
counterparty under substantially equivalent terms. 

Each of the UBS swaps above was established as part of a hedging arrangement during fiscal year 
2009, as a hedge of total cash flows associated with the interest payments on the Series 1998A, 
Series 1998B, Series 2002B, and Series 2009B Bonds. As part of the 2012 refinancing, the hedging 
effectiveness was reevaluated, and the swaps were reassigned as hedges of the interest payments on 
the 2012B-1, 2012B-2 and 2012B-3 Series Bonds. The fair value of the swap liability at that time 
was treated as an unrealized loss on refunding of debt, and is appropriately being amortized utilizing 
the effective interest method over the shorter of the remaining life of the original debt or the new 
debt. The unamortized balance of the loss on refunding of debt related to the swap agreements was 
$13,820 and $15,136 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012. In 2013 OHSU novated its swap agreements, 
replacing UBS with U.S. Bank, and effectively creating a new off-market interest rate swap 
agreement. These new swap agreements with U.S. Bank are assigned as hedges of the 2012B-1, 
2012B-2, and 2012B-3 Series Bonds. 
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Management has evaluated the effectiveness of the current hedges assuming hybrid instruments; 
each swap consists of a companion debt instrument, representing the value of the swap at the 
inception of the current hedge, and a hedging instrument, representing the hypothetical value of the 
swap had it held a $0 value at the inception of the hedge. The total value of the companion debt 
instrument is as follows: 

Hedged Beginning Beginning Ending date Ending Change
Instrument bonds date balance balance balance in value

2005A Off Market SWAP 6/30/2012 $ 2,620   6/30/2013 $ 2,458  ??
?

(162)  
2005A 2012B-1/2012B-2 6/30/2012 4,948   6/30/2013 4,539  ?? (409)  
2005B Off Market SWAP 6/30/2012 2,621   6/30/2013 2,429  (192)  
2005B 2012B-1/2012B-2 6/30/2012 4,947   6/30/2013 4,539  (408)  

 

The companion debt instrument for the U.S. Bank swaps was determined at the date of novation 
during fiscal year 2013, and is reported in other liabilities. The liability is being amortized over the 
remaining term of the swap agreements on a straight-line basis as an offset to interest expense. 

The fair value of the current hedging instrument asset (liability) for the U.S. Bank swaps are 
recorded in other assets (liabilities), with an offsetting balance recorded in other deferred (debits) 
credits. Any subsequent changes to the value of the hedging instruments are recorded by increasing 
or decreasing these balance sheet accounts. The total value of the asset (liability) are $2,082 and 
($821) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

OHSU is exposed to swap credit risk, which is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its 
obligation. As of June 30, 2013, the counterparties’ credit ratings were A+ from Standard & Poor’s, 
A2 from Moody’s, and A+ from Fitch. Additionally, the swaps expose OHSU to basis risk, which is 
the risk that arises when the relationship between the rates on the variable rate bonds and the swap 
formulas noted above vary from historical norms. If this occurs, swap payments received by OHSU 
may not fully offset its bond interest payments. As these rates change, the effective synthetic rate on 
the bonds will change. 

OHSU is additionally responsible for posting collateral if the total swap liability for swaps with one 
of the counterparties exceeds a predetermined value on their reporting date. The collateral posting 
limit was $30,000, compared to a total relevant swap liability value of $11,676, as of June 30, 2013 
and $17,019 as of June 30, 2013, resulting in a requirement that OHSU post zero collateral as of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

OHSU or the counterparties may terminate the swaps if the other party fails to perform under the 
terms of the contracts. 
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(f) Capital Leases 

OHSU has entered into agreements for the lease of certain equipment, property, and improvements. 
Amortization of the capitalized value of these assets is included in depreciation and amortization 
expense on the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. Future minimum lease 
payments under these agreements are as follows: 

Year ending June 30:
2014 $ 672   
2015 352   
2016 289   
2017 91   
2018 5   

1,409   

Less amount representing interest (106)  

1,303   

Less current portion (613)  
$ 690   

 

(g) Summary of Long-Term Debt, Bonds, and Capital Leases 

Amounts due under the DSPA, the 1995 Revenue Bonds, the 2002 Revenue Bonds, the 2009 
Revenue Bonds, and the Tenancy in Common Agreement – CLSB are included in long-term debt in 
the accompanying balance sheets and are shown net of unamortized discounts and premiums of 
$31,065 and $14,401 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and net of unamortized loss on 
refunding of $3,353 and $3,672 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Amounts due under the 
DSPA and the 1995 Revenue Bonds include accreted interest of $41,904 and $40,657 as of June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. Interest is accreted on the DSPA and the 1995 Revenue Bonds from the 
date the obligations were issued until maturity using the effective-interest method. 
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Scheduled principal and interest repayments under the DSPA, the various revenue bond obligations, 
and the local improvement district agreements are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total

Year ending June 30:
2014 $ 17,872   26,833   44,705   
2015 17,410   31,597   49,007   
2016 18,144   32,126   50,270   
2017 15,981   35,656   51,637   
2018 – 2022 73,274   173,486   246,760   
2023 – 2027 125,544   110,540   236,084   
2028 – 2032 170,606   86,471   257,077   
2033 – 2037 91,833   52,056   143,889   
2038 – 2042 139,765   18,180   157,945   
2043 29,390   72   29,462   

$ 699,819   567,017   1,266,836   
 

The cost of obtaining debt is deferred and amortized over the term of the related debt using the 
effective-interest method. 

(h) Changes in Long-term Liabilities 

Changes in OHSU’s total long-term liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 
are summarized below: 

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,

2012 Increases Decreases 2013

Liability for self-funded
insurance programs $ 61,228   14,661   (14,065)  61,824   

Liability for life income
agreements 16,235   4,056   (3,778)  16,513   

Long-term debt 796,277   134,016   (160,858)  769,435   
Long-term capital leases 4,663   949   (4,309)  1,303   
Other noncurrent liabilities 24,843   3,431   (1,292)  26,982   

$ 903,246   157,113   (184,302)  876,057   
 



DRAFT   10/16/2013   9:12 AM   204565_13_OregonHealth&ScienceUniv_FS.docx  

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

(Amounts in thousands) 

 49 (Continued) 

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,

2011 Increases Decreases 2012

Liability for self-funded
insurance programs $ 56,091   16,478   (11,341)  61,228   

Liability for life income
agreements 17,134   1,862   (2,761)  16,235   

Long-term debt 736,226   354,521   (294,470)  796,277   
Long-term capital leases 5,805   —    (1,142)  4,663   
Other noncurrent liabilities 14,947   13,966   (4,070)  24,843   

$ 830,203   386,827   (313,784)  903,246   
 

(10) Life Income Fund – Annuities 

Assets contributed as life income agreements are recorded at their fair value. The present value of 
estimated future payments to beneficiaries of annuity agreements is recorded as a liability. The present 
values of these estimated payments were determined on the basis of published actuarial factors for the ages 
of the respective annuity beneficiaries. Differences between the assets contributed and the expected 
payments to be made to beneficiaries have been recorded as donations in the year established. 

Life income contributions, included in gifts, grants, and contracts in the accompanying statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position are as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012: 

2013 2012
Agreements Asset Liability Agreements Asset Liability

Charitable remainder unitrusts 5  $ 172  41  5  $ 145  20  
Charitable gift annuities 18  1,901  1,340  9  1,089  795  
Life estate agreements 1  17  2  —  —  —  

Total 24  $ 2,090  1,383  14  $ 1,234  815  

 

The assets and corresponding liabilities related to life income agreements are included in long-term 
investments, restricted, and the liability for life income agreements in the accompanying balance sheets. 
Total life income agreements held at June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

2013 2012
Agreements Asset Liability Agreements Asset Liability

Charitable remainder unitrusts 77  $ 18,718  8,282  78  $ 18,119  8,427  
Charitable remainder trust annuities 9  1,706  463  10  1,391  864  
Charitable gift annuities 209  10,639  7,181  200  9,123  6,331  
Life estate agreements 6  1,573  578  6  1,738  613  

Total 301  $ 32,636  16,504  294  $ 30,371  16,235  
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Twenty-four charitable gift annuities, included above, have been reinsured with insurance carriers in order 
to reduce liability exposure. Under the reinsurance contracts, the future beneficiary payments are paid by 
the insurance carrier. To the extent the insurance carriers are unable to perform under the contract, OHSU 
would be responsible for payment. 

(11) Funds Held in Trust by Others 

Funds held in trust by others, for which OHSU is an income beneficiary, are not recorded in the financial 
statements. The approximate fair market value of such trusts was $6,972 and $7,048 on June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

The Foundations are the named beneficiaries of thirty trusts held by outside trustees. The reported fair 
market value of trust assets held by others was $40,500 and $32,500 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. The Foundations record contributions as trust distributions occur. Trust distributions of 
$1,800 and $1,400 were recorded as contributions during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. 

(12) Pledges and Estates Receivables 

The Foundations had the following pledges and estates receivable as of June 30, 2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012

Pledges maturing within 1 year $ 37,879   20,863   
Pledges maturing within 2 – 10 years 106,097   60,685   

143,976   81,548   

Less allowance for uncollectible pledges (1,296)  (1,781)  

142,680   79,767   

Less discount for net present value (2,663)  (3,286)  

Total net pledges receivable 140,017   76,481   

Estates receivable 1,780   947   
Less allowance for uncollectible estates (89)  (47)  

Total net estates receivable 1,691   900   
Total pledges and estates receivable $ 141,708   77,381   

 

(13) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Liability for Self-Funded Insurance Programs 

Coverage for professional liability, general liability and automobile liability are provided through 
OHSU’s solely-owned captive insurance company, OHSU Insurance Company. Current coverage 
limits, for claims made on or after July 1, 2012 are $3.6 million for each and every claim for 
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professional liability and $3.0 million for general liability. There is an annual aggregate of 
$17.5 million for professional liability and general liability. Coverage for claims made prior to 
July 1, 2002 are $1.0 million for each claim with an annual aggregate of $4.0 million. 

Coverage for the Directors and Officers liability and employment practices liability deductible is also 
provided through OHSU Insurance Company. Current coverage limits, for claims made on or after 
July 1, 2012 are $1.0 million for each and every claim with no annual aggregate. 

Coverage for the cyber liability deductible is also provided through OHSU Insurance Company. The 
coverage limit for cyber liability is $250,000 for each and every claim. 

Excess coverage and reinsurance is provided by a variety of insurers for claims that may exceed 
these limits. Coverage is written on a claims-made basis. 

OHSU has contracted with independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs of settlement related 
to the coverage provided by OHSU Insurance Company. The liabilities are discounted at 3% in 2013 
and 2012 and, in management’s opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. 

In December 2007, the Oregon Supreme Court found unconstitutional certain provisions of the 
Oregon Tort Claims Act (OTCA) that limited OHSU’s liability for the acts of its employees and 
agents in large damages cases. 

Effective July 1, 2009, the OTCA was amended by Senate Bill 311 for events occurring on or after 
December 28, 2007. The new OTCA limits are as follows: 

New OTCA Occurrence
Date of event limit aggregate

12/28/2007 – 06/30/2010 $ 1,500   3,000   
07/01/2010 – 06/30/2011 1,600   3,200   
07/01/2011 – 06/30/2012 1,700   3,400   
07/01/2012 – 06/30/2013 1,800   3,600   
07/01/2013 – 06/30/2014 1,900   3,800   
07/01/2014 – 06/30/2015 2,000   4,000    

The impact of this decision has been included in the liability for self-funded insurance programs in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

On January 1, 2006, Workers Compensation coverage for all employees was placed with the SAIF 
Corporation in accordance with statutory requirements. SAIF also provides Employers Liability 
coverage in the amount of $500,000, without retention. The SAIF policy is written as a paid loss 
retrospective plan. SAIF charges a minimum premium quarterly. This paid premium is an estimate 
and varies with audited payroll. In addition, SAIF bills monthly for the prior month’s paid losses, 
adding a 16.5% loss conversion factor to the paid loss costs. Six months after the policy term, and 
every 12 months thereafter, a retrospective evaluation is completed to determine any additional 
amounts to be paid, including outstanding reserves, for claims relating to the policy year. 
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(b) Unemployment Compensation 

Unemployment compensation claims are administered by the Oregon Employment Division pursuant 
to Oregon Revised Statutes. The estimated amount of future benefits payments to claimants and the 
resulting liability to OHSU have been reflected as accrued salaries, wages, and benefits in the 
accompanying balance sheets. 

(c) Employee Health Programs 

OHSU is self-insured for its risk of loss related to costs to insure its employees for medical, dental, 
and vision coverage. OHSU has utilized a third-party actuary to assist in the estimation of its liability 
for the employee health programs related to claims payable and those claims incurred but not yet 
paid or reported of approximately $12,730 and $13,809 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
These amounts are included in current portion of self-funded insurance program liabilities in the 
accompanying balance sheets. 

(d) Labor Organizations 

Approximately 15% of OHSU’s employees are nurses represented by the Oregon Nurses Association 
(ONA). Approximately 39% of OHSU’s employees are represented by the American Federation of 
State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), for a total of 54% of OHSU’s employees 
being represented by labor organizations. OHSU’s contract with ONA expired on September 30, 
2013, with a one month extension expiring on October 31, 2013. The current contract with AFSCME 
expires on June 30, 2015. 

(e) Construction Contracts 

OHSU had outstanding commitments on unexpended construction contracts totaling approximately 
$57,651 and $4,801 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These commitments will be primarily 
funded from gifts, grants, funds held by trustee, and other investment accounts. 

(f) Legal Proceedings 

The healthcare industry and academic medical centers are subject to numerous laws and regulations 
of federal, state, and local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, 
laws and regulations related to licensure, accreditation, government health program participation, 
reimbursement for patient services, Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse, and laws and 
regulations governing the conduct of federally funded research, research involving human and 
animal subjects, and other facets of research. Government monitoring and enforcement activity 
continues with respect to possible violations of fraud and abuse laws and regulations, and other laws 
and regulations applicable to healthcare providers and healthcare institutions, including academic 
medical centers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government 
healthcare programs, together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties and repayments 
for patient services previously billed. Management believes OHSU is in compliance with applicable 
fraud and abuse laws and regulations, as well as other applicable government laws and regulations.  
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OHSU’s compliance with the referenced laws and regulations may be subject to current or future 
government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this 
time. 

OHSU is involved in litigation and is periodically the subject of regulatory inquiries in the normal 
course of its business. In past years, OHSU was subject to several federal healthcare audits as a part 
of national initiatives targeting large numbers of hospitals and academic medical centers, and was the 
subject of government-issued subpoenas and postpayment reviews concerning specific OHSU billing 
practices. OHSU responded to these audits, subpoenas, and reviews, and these matters were resolved 
or are expected to be resolved without material adverse effect on OHSU’s financial position, results 
of operations, or liquidity. 

(g) Operating Leases 

Leases that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as operating leases, with the 
related rentals charged to operations as incurred. 

Rental expenses under operating leases were approximately $18,956 and $19,294 in 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. The following is a schedule of future minimum rental commitments under operating 
leases as of June 30, 2013 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year: 

Year ending June 30:
2014 $ 16,546   
2015 13,289   
2016 12,687   
2017 10,783   
2018 7,306   
2019 – 2023 28,944   
2024 – 2028 617   
2029 – 2033 683   

$ 90,855   
 

(h) Healthcare Reform 

As a result of recently enacted federal and state healthcare reform legislation, substantial changes are 
anticipated in the U.S. healthcare system. Such legislation includes numerous provisions affecting 
the delivery of healthcare services, the financing of healthcare costs, reimbursement of healthcare 
providers, and the legal obligations of health insurers, providers, and employers. On July 5, 2012, the 
Centers for Medicaid and Medicare (CMS) approved Oregon’s 1115 Medicaid Waiver that was 
necessary to implement Medicaid transformation in Oregon. 

(14) Blended Component Units 

Condensed combining statements for OHSU and its blended component units are shown below: 
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Condensed combining information for the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
Assets University INSCO UMG Foundations Foundations reclassifications consolidated

Current assets $ 780,834   8,686   8,241   49,119   1,297   (38,372)  809,805   

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,412,726   —    567   509   8   —    1,413,810   
Other Non Current Assets 287,295   77,133   —    718,498   51,557   —    1,134,483   

Total noncurrent assets 1,700,021   77,133   567   719,007   51,565   —    2,548,293   
Total assets $ 2,480,855   85,819   8,808   768,126   52,862   (38,372)  3,358,098   

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities $ 346,633   134   2,791   35,808   1,889   (38,372)  348,883   
Noncurrent liabilities 790,703   30,309   132   15,808   2,317   —    839,269   

Total liabilities 1,137,336   30,443   2,923   51,616   4,206   (38,372)  1,188,152   

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 721,101   —    —    509   8   —    721,618   
Restricted, expendable 76,039   —    —    299,128   21,432   —    396,599   
Restricted, nonexpendable —    —    —    166,664   14,492   —    181,156   
Unrestricted 546,379   55,376   5,885   250,209   12,724   —    870,573   

Total net position 1,343,519   55,376   5,885   716,510   48,656   —    2,169,946   
Total liabilities and net position $ 2,480,855   85,819   8,808   768,126   52,862   (38,372)  3,358,098   
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Condensed combining information for the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
Assets University INSCO Foundations Foundations reclassifications Consolidated

Current assets $ 826,199   6,506   32,180   1,273   (28,589)  837,569   

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,282,084   —    551   12   —    1,282,647   
Other Non Current Assets 265,473   73,019   631,329   48,293   —    1,018,114   

Total noncurrent assets 1,547,557   73,019   631,880   48,305   —    2,300,761   
Total assets $ 2,373,756   79,525   664,060   49,578   (28,589)  3,138,330   

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities $ 325,032   156   28,936   2,031   (28,589)  327,566   
Noncurrent liabilities 809,438   34,668   15,933   2,028   —    862,067   

Total liabilities 1,134,470   34,824   44,869   4,059   (28,589)  1,189,633   

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 628,532   —    551   12   —    629,095   
Restricted, expendable 67,240   —    224,360   17,435   —    309,035   
Restricted, nonexpendable —    —    161,132   13,891   —    175,023   
Unrestricted 543,514   44,701   233,148   14,181   —    835,544   

Total net position 1,239,286   44,701   619,191   45,519   —    1,948,697   
Total liabilities and net position $ 2,373,756   79,525   664,060   49,578   (28,589)  3,138,330   
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Condensed combining information related to revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
University INSCO UMG Foundations Foundations reclassifications consolidated

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenue $ 1,519,741   —    —    —    —    —    1,519,741   
Student tuition and fees, net 59,013   —    —    —    —    —    59,013   
State appropriations 30,146   —    —    —    —    (30,146)  —    
Gifts, grants, and contracts 428,644   —    —    140,967   14,946   (86,907)  497,650   
Other revenue 94,679   11,957   15,421   2,764   161   (31,870)  93,112   

Total operating revenues 2,132,223   11,957   15,421   143,731   15,107   121,923   2,169,516   

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and benefits 1,236,540   764   10,024   11,208   —    (434)  1,258,102   
Services, supplies, and other 667,727   774   4,230   76,105   14,239   (117,688)  645,387   
Depreciation and amortization 112,162   —    130   156   5   —    112,453   
Interest 28,601   —    —    —    —    —    28,601   

Total operating expenses 2,045,030   1,538   14,384   87,469   14,244   (118,122)  2,044,543   

Operating income 87,193   10,419   1,037   56,262   863   (30,801)  124,973   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income and gain (loss) in fair value of investments 12,930   256   3   35,161   2,061   —    50,411   
State appropriations —    —    30,146   30,146   
Other 596   —    2,184   (153)  —    2,627   

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 13,526   256   3   37,345   1,908   30,146   83,184   

Net income (loss) before other changes in net position 100,719   10,675   1,040   93,607   2,771   (655)  208,157   

Other changes in net position:
Contributions for capital and other 3,513   —    4,845   —    —    655   9,013   
Change in interest in the Foundations —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Nonexpendable donations 1   —    —    3,712   366   —    4,079   

Total other changes in net position 3,514   —    4,845   3,712   366   655   13,092   

Total increase (decrease) in net position 104,233   10,675   5,885   97,319   3,137   —    221,249   

Net position – beginning of year 1,239,286   44,701   —    619,191   45,519   —    1,948,697   
Net position – end of year $ 1,343,519   55,376   5,885   716,510   48,656   —    2,169,946   
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in thousands)

Condensed combining information related to revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
University INSCO Foundations Foundations reclassifications Consolidated

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenue $ 1,441,157   —    —    —    —    1,441,157   
Student tuition and fees, net 60,020   —    —    —    —    60,020   
State appropriations 35,389   —    —    —    (35,389)  —    
Gifts, grants, and contracts 404,238   —    36,256   9,750   (68,716)  381,528   
Other revenue 94,972   12,817   2,675   130   (17,694)  92,900   

Total operating revenues 2,035,776   12,817   38,931   9,880   (121,799)  1,975,605   

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and benefits 1,182,978   745   10,453   —    —    1,194,176   
Services, supplies, and other 627,426   8,827   64,518   9,512   (82,452)  627,831   
Depreciation and amortization 111,017   —    152   5   —    111,174   
Interest 34,742   —    —    —    —    34,742   

Total operating expenses 1,956,163   9,572   75,123   9,517   (82,452)  1,967,923   

Operating income 79,613   3,245   (36,192)  363   (39,347)  7,682   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income and gain (loss) in fair value of investments 15,143   3,702   (1,878)  (458)  —    16,509   
State appropriations —    —    —    —    35,389   35,389   
Other 3,260   —    425   (306)  —    3,379   

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 18,403   3,702   (1,453)  (764)  35,389   55,277   

Net income (loss) before other changes in net position 98,016   6,947   (37,645)  (401)  (3,958)  62,959   

Other changes in net position:
Contributions for capital and other 101   —    —    —    3,958   4,059   
Change in interest in the Foundations —    —    —    —    —    —    
Nonexpendable donations —    —    11,500   91   —    11,591   

Total other changes in net position 101   —    11,500   91   3,958   15,650   

Total increase (decrease) in net position 98,117   6,947   (26,145)  (310)  —    78,609   

Net position – beginning of year 1,141,169   37,754   645,336   45,829   —    1,870,088   
Net position – end of year $ 1,239,286   44,701   619,191   45,519   —    1,948,697   
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in thousands)

Condensed combining information related to cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
University INSCO UMG Foundations Foundations reclassifications consolidated

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 258,851   8,493   2,257   (11,803)  357   —    258,155   
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 23,372   —    —    11,244   278   —    34,894   
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (294,919)  —    (356)  (135)  —    —    (295,410)  
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (50,478)  (6,301)  697   (637)  —    (56,719)  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (63,174)  2,192   1,901   3   (2)  —    (59,080)  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 148,362   916   4,737   1,598   161   —    155,774   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 85,188   3,108   6,638   1,601   159   —    96,694   
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in thousands)

Condensed combining information related to cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

OHSUF DCH Eliminations/ Total
University INSCO Foundations Foundations reclassifications consolidated

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 176,408   11,201   (21,925)  2,214   —    167,898   
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 39,771   —    14,222   (544)  —    53,449   
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (131,570)  —    (134)  —    —    (131,704)  
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (116,477)  (12,657)  6,517   (1,789)  —    (124,406)  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (31,868)  (1,456)  (1,320)  (119)  —    (34,763)  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 184,967   2,372   2,918   280   —    190,537   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 153,099   916   1,598   161   —    155,774   
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Required Supplementary Information – Unaudited 
Postemployment Healthcare Benefit Plan 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

The funded status of the OHSU plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation date is as follows (amounts 
in thousands): 

Unfunded
Actuarial actuarial UAAL as a
accrued accrued percentage

Actuarial liability liability Covered of covered
value of assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded ratio payroll payroll

Actuarial valuation date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

January 1, 2008 $ —  19,120  19,120  —% $ 525,932  3.6%
January 1, 2010 —  19,185  19,185  — 669,000  2.9%
January 1, 2012 —  19,894  19,894  — 791,382  2.5%

 

The actuarially determined amounts above use an assumed discount rate of 3.5% in the January 1, 2012 
valuation. The assumed healthcare cost trend rate was 8.75% in 2013, declining gradually to 4% in 2032 and 
remaining at 4% thereafter. 

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Consolidating Schedules of Net Position

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Other Total Eliminations/
Assets Hospital University University Foundations reclassifications 2013 2012

Current assets:  
Cash and cash equivalents $ 193,738   (98,804)  94,934   1,760   —    96,694   155,774   
Short-term investments 272,153   26,356   298,509   1,127   —    299,636   182,212   
Current portion of funds held by trustee 1,715   51,335   53,050   —    —    53,050   132,415   
Patients accounts receivable, net of bad debt allowances of $12,787 in 2013 and $9,838 in 2012  171,904   45,946   217,850   —    —    217,850   207,307   
Student receivables —    18,805   18,805   —    —    18,805   20,787   
Grant and contract receivable —    34,723   34,723   —    —    34,723   28,923   
Interest receivable 1,032   467   1,499   1,247   —    2,746   2,330   
Current portion of pledges and estates receivable —    —    —    39,090   —    39,090   21,262   
Other receivables, net 6,154   34,703   40,857   6,970   (35,697)  12,130   53,239   
Inventories, at cost 17,398   2,431   19,829   —    —    19,829   18,060   
Prepaid expenses 9,612   5,418   15,030   222   —    15,252   15,260   

Total current assets 673,706   121,380   795,086   50,416   (35,697)  809,805   837,569   

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 548,432   864,861   1,413,293   517   —    1,413,810   1,282,647   
Funds held by trustee – less current portion 15,194   10,449   25,643   —    —    25,643   39,121   
Long-term investments: —    —    —    —    

Long-term investments, restricted —    27,814   27,814   375,262   —    403,076   380,089   
Long-term investments, unrestricted 119,222   162,960   282,182   289,567   —    571,749   511,573   

Total long-term investments 119,222   190,774   309,996   664,829   —    974,825   891,662   

Deferred financing costs, net 15,288   11,419   26,707   —    —    26,707   27,646   
Pledges and estates receivable – less current portion —    —    —    102,618   —    102,618   56,119   
Other noncurrent assets 1,162   920   2,082   2,608   —    4,690   3,566   
Interest in the Foundations —    765,166   765,166   —    (765,166)  —    —    

Total noncurrent assets 699,298   1,843,589   2,542,887   770,572   (765,166)  2,548,293   2,300,761   
Total assets $ 1,373,004   1,964,969   3,337,973   820,988   (800,863)  3,358,098   3,138,330   

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities: 
Current portion of long-term debt $ 8,206   9,666   17,872   —    —    17,872   18,467   
Current portion of long-term capital leases 265   348   613   —    —    613   4,034   
Current portion of self-funded insurance programs liability —    18,303   18,303   —    —    18,303   18,678   
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 57,077   81,813   138,890   1,956   —    140,846   122,941   
Drafts payable 9,721   7,494   17,215   —    —    17,215   17,360   
Accrued salaries, wages, and benefits 21,859   42,456   64,315   —    —    64,315   65,554   
Compensated absences payable 26,595   28,816   55,411   —    —    55,411   52,933   
Deferred revenue 371   30,274   30,645   —    —    30,645   26,837   
Other current liabilities 573   3,046   3,619   35,741   (35,697)  3,663   762   

Total current liabilities 124,667   222,216   346,883   37,697   (35,697)  348,883   327,566   

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Long-term debt – less current portion 346,144   405,419   751,563   —    —    751,563   777,810   
Long-term capital leases – less current portion —    690   690   —    —    690   629   
Liability for self-funded insurance programs – less current portion —    43,521   43,521   —    —    43,521   42,550   
Liability for life income agreements —    —    —    16,513   —    16,513   16,235   
Other noncurrent liabilities 9,521   15,849   25,370   1,612   —    26,982   24,843   

Total noncurrent liabilities 355,665   465,479   821,144   18,125   —    839,269   862,067   

Total liabilities 480,332   687,695   1,168,027   55,822   (35,697)  1,188,152   1,189,633   

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 210,726   510,375   721,101   517   —    721,618   629,095   
Restricted, expendable —    396,599   396,599   320,560   (320,560)  396,599   309,035   
Restricted, nonexpendable —    181,156   181,156   181,156   (181,156)  181,156   175,023   
Unrestricted 681,946   189,144   871,090   262,933   (263,450)  870,573   835,544   

Total net position 892,672   1,277,274   2,169,946   765,166   (765,166)  2,169,946   1,948,697   
Total liabilities and net position $ 1,373,004   1,964,969   3,337,973   820,988   (800,863)  3,358,098   3,138,330   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY
Schedule 1
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OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY

Consolidating Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Other Total Eliminations/
Hospital University University Foundations reclassifications 2013 2012

Operating revenues: 
Patient service revenue, net of bad debt adjustments of $62,266 in 2013 

and $48,206 in 2012 $ 1,186,558   333,183   1,519,741   —    —    1,519,741   1,441,157   
Student tuition and fees, net —    59,013   59,013   —    —    59,013   60,020   
State appropriations 1,066   29,080   30,146   —    (30,146)  —    —    
Gifts, grants, and contracts 514   428,130   428,644   155,913   (86,907)  497,650   381,528   
Other revenue 46,411   48,269   94,680   2,925   (4,493)  93,112   92,900   

Total operating revenues 1,234,549   897,675   2,132,224   158,838   (121,546)  2,169,516   1,975,605   

Operating expenses: 
Salaries, wages, and benefits 550,601   696,293   1,246,894   11,208   —    1,258,102   1,194,176   
Services, supplies, and other 530,143   115,645   645,788   90,344   (90,745)  645,387   627,831   
Depreciation and amortization 57,884   54,409   112,293   160   —    112,453   111,174   
Interest 16,213   12,388   28,601   —    —    28,601   34,742   

Total operating expenses 1,154,841   878,735   2,033,576   101,712   (90,745)  2,044,543   1,967,923   

Operating income 79,708   18,940   98,648   57,126   (30,801)  124,973   7,682   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Investment income and gain (loss) in fair value of investments 7,539   5,652   13,191   37,220   —    50,411   16,509   
State appropriations —    —    —    —    30,146   30,146   35,389   
Other (33)  629   596   2,031   —    2,627   3,379   

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 7,506   6,281   13,787   39,251   30,146   83,184   55,277   

Net income (loss) before contributions for capital and other 87,214   25,221   112,435   96,377   (655)  208,157   62,959   

Other changes in net position: 
Contributions for capital and other (26)  8,384   8,358   —    655   9,013   4,059   
Change in interest in the Foundations —    100,456   100,456   —    (100,456)  —    —    
Nonexpendable donations —    —    —    4,079   —    4,079   11,591   

Total other changes in net position (26)  108,840   108,814   4,079   (99,801)  13,092   15,650   

Total increase (decrease) in net position 87,188   134,061   221,249   100,456   (100,456)  221,249   78,609   

Net position – beginning of year 805,484   1,143,213   1,948,697   664,710   (664,710)  1,948,697   1,948,697   
Net position – end of year $ 892,672   1,277,274   2,169,946   765,166   (765,166)  2,169,946   2,027,306   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Purpose and scope of audit examinations 

Purpose of audit 

 To express an opinion that the financial statements “present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position and results of operations” of OHSU 

 An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of OHSU’s internal control over 
financial reporting 

 External audit procedures do not replace internal audit or management controls 
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Purpose and scope of audit examinations (continued) 

Audit scope 

 Oregon Health & Science University – Consolidated Report 

– University Hospital/Doernbecher Children’s Hospital 

– University Activity, including the Faculty Practice Plan (FPP) 

– Research Activity 

 Oregon Health & Science University Foundation 

 Doernbecher Children’s Hospital Foundation 

 Oregon Health & Science University – OMB Circular A-133 (Federal grant audit) 

 Oregon Health & Science University – Family Medicine at Richmond 

 OHSU Insurance Company (InsCo) 

 University Medical Group (UMG) 

 OHSU – Institute on Development and Disability (IDD) Supplement 
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Key audit areas 

Key processes and controls 

 Patient revenue 

 Student tuition 

 Grant revenue 

 Expenditure cycle 

 Payroll 

 Risk Management 

 Oracle and Epic IT Controls 

Significant account balances 

 Property, Plant and Equipment additions 

 Investments, including 
alternative investments 

 Debt, including capitalized interest 

Areas of high judgment and estimate 

 Accounts receivables contractual and bad 
debt reserves 

 Third party reserves, and other 
unique accruals 

 Self-insurance reserves 

 Investment valuation 

A-133 audit federal grant activity 

 Audit focuses on compliance areas outlined 
by government 

 Significant test work performed on 
programs deemed “major” 

– Research & Development Cluster 

– Student Financial Aid Cluster 
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Auditors’ responsibilities for communication with the board of directors 

The Auditor’s Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States 
of America. Communicate responsibility assumed for the internal control structure, material errors, 
irregularities and illegal acts, etc. 

 Our audit was designed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

 We have the responsibility to obtain sufficient understanding of internal control to plan our audits 
and determine the nature, timing and extent of procedures to be performed. 

 We noted no material errors, irregularities or illegal acts. The changing regulatory environment 
places greater risk of compliance with regulatory requirements. 

 We will issue an unmodified opinion stating that the financial statements of OHSU are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in accordance with GAAP. 

Significant Accounting Policies. The Board should be informed about the initial selection of and 
changes in significant accounting policies as well as the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions. 

 New accounting policies in current year include  

– GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus 

– GASB 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position 
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Auditors’ responsibilities for communication with the board of directors 
(continued) 

Non-routine Transactions. The Board should be informed about the methods used to account 
for significant or non-routine transactions 

 We identified the following significant or non-routine transactions/events 

– Swap novation 

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates. The Board should be informed about 
the process used by management in forming particularly sensitive accounting estimates and 
about the basis for the auditor’s conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates 

 We agree with the estimates made in the financial statements, which primarily include: 

– Patient accounts receivable and related reserves 

– Third party reserves, including regulatory reserves such as RAC and OIG 

– Self-insurance reserves, including professional liability, workers’ compensation, 
employment practices, and employee medical 

– Investment valuation 
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Auditors’ responsibilities for communication with the board of directors 
(continued) 

Passed Adjustments. Any passed audit adjustments proposed by the auditor impacting earnings, but not 
recorded by the client, should be communicated to the Board 

 Reversal of $4.7M of current year gain, for write off of reserve related to liver transplant reimbursement 
rates. Entry considers the prior year impact of passed entry to remove the accrual at 6/30/12.   

 $17.5M reclassification to decrease cash and decrease accounts payable for outstanding checks that were 
moved by management to a liability. 

 $5.6M in current year expense reductions to self insurance reserve as the reserve falls outside the range of 
reasonableness determined by KPMG actuary 

 $2.6M increase to revenue for cost report settlements received after year-end which related to FY’13 and 
prior 

Recorded Audit Adjustments impacting earnings. All significant recorded audit adjustments arising from the 
audit should be communicated to the Board 

 Reduction of employee medical self-insurance reserves by $2.6M for elimination of level premium 
adjustment 

Disagreements with Management. Disagreements with management, whether or not satisfactorily resolved, 
about matters that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report should be 
communicated to the Board 

 There were no such disagreements 
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Auditors’ responsibilities for communication with the board of directors 
(continued) 

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements 

 Management Discussion and Analysis 

 Required Supplementary Information: Postemployment benefit liabilities 

 Institute on Development and Disability Supplemental Schedules (formerly CDRC) 

 Combining Schedules 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit. Serious difficulties encountered in dealing 
with management that relate to the performance of the audit are required to be brought to the 
attention of the Board. 

 No difficulties were encountered in performing our audits. 

 We received excellent cooperation from management and staff. 

Deficiencies in Internal Control. Any deficiencies in internal control encountered while 
performing the audit are required to be brought to the attention of the Board. 

 There were no material weaknesses noted in the internal control structure. 

Auditor Independence. 

 KPMG is independent of OHSU. 
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Quality of earnings (000’s) 

Quality of Earnings (000’s) 

Net Income as Reported in Financial Statements $ 208,157 

 Medicare  & Medicaid settlement activity (9,784) 

 FICA payments to VA 5,030 

 FICA payments for unfiled years 4,739 

 InsCo favorable settlements (5,669) 

 Remove employee medical level premium factor (4,941) 

 Other reserve adjustments (1,441) 

Net impact (12,066) 

Net Income as Adjusted for Quality of Earnings Items $ 196,091 



The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the 
circumstances of any particular individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate 
and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the 
date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on 
such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the 
particular situation. 

© 2013 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the 
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 117310 
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FY13 Audited Financial Results 
 
OHSU Board of Directors 
September 24, 2013 
 



Overview of FY13 Audited Results 

o OHSU’s audited FY13 operating income ended at $98.6 million, somewhat above 
preliminary report because we reversed a $2.6 million reserve against intra-year timing 
of health benefit costs, which was non-GAAP and not required. 

o Final earnings were nearly $39 million above budget, of which ~$9 million are one-time 
and non-cash accounting adjustments. 

o Remaining $30 million improvement reflects increased complexity of patient activity, 
brought to the bottom line through tight control of expenses, including overhead. 

o Foundations operating income was $51 million, up from negative $(35) million in FY12, 
largely due to booking the major component of the Knight Cardiovascular Institute gift. 

o Foundations operating earnings move between gains and losses for timing reasons—
the receipt then application of large gifts—and because part of Foundations’ expense 
is funded by non-operating investment income on endowment and cash reserves.   
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FY13 Audited Results (continued) 

o Page 62 of audited statements shows how OHSU and Foundations operating income 
are added together, and then reclassified for GASB accounting: 
 

  (millions)                     FY12 FY13 
 

  OHSU operating income                 $82.9 $98.6 
  Foundation operating income (35.8) 57.1 
  Reclassify State appropriations (35.4) (30.1) 
  Reclassify capital contributions (4.0) (0.6) 
   _______ _______ 

  Consolidated operating income $7.7 $125.0 
 

o Put another way, consolidated operating income rises from FY12 to FY13 largely 
because of the Knight Cardiovascular Institute gift 

o Pages 3 – 16 of the audited statements provide management’s discussion and 
analysis of results 
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RESOLUTION 2013-10-06 

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
  IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Oregon Health & Science University that 
the Board hereby accepts the Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report as set 
out by KPMG (attached) for Oregon Health & Science University for the Fiscal Year 2012 (July 
1, 2012 – June 30, 2013).  

 
 

This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013 
 
 Yeas  ______ 
 
 Nays  ______ 
 
 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 
 
 
 
   
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 



FY13 Investment Results and 
Fixed-Income Investment Policy 
 
OHSU Board of Directors 
October 24, 2013 
 



Consolidated Investments Exceed $1.4B 

1 

Operating 
funds
$83

Fixed income funds
$322

Balanced mutual funds
$97

Self -insurance 
funds
$85

Project/bond 
funds
$100

Quasi-
endowment

$83

Foundation current funds
$259

Foundation life income
$31

Foundation endowment
$378

Consolidated Cash & Investments at June 30, 2013
(OHSU $771m + Foundation $668m = Total $1,439m)



OHSU-Held Funds Up $467M in 5 Years 
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FY13 Return on Investable Assets 

3 

o In FY13, OHSU booked $16.3 million of investment total return on cash and other 
investable assets, representing a 2.1% rate of return on an average balance of $774 
million on OHSU-held funds. 

o This is slightly (-0.18%) below benchmark. 

o FY13 returns reflect the negative impact of increasing interest rates in May and June, 
partially offset by strong stock market returns in the equity components of the 
Vanguard balanced index fund and the quasi-endowment. 

o After an RFP process with six firms, we are transitioning ~$320 million of short and 
intermediate term fixed income investments to JP Morgan, and propose several 
refinements to OHSU’s investment policy to facilitate their new management approach. 

o Foundation endowment, which is largely in equities, returned 9.6% during FY13, which 
is above benchmark. 

 

 

 



Most OHSU Funds in 0 - 3 Year Fixed Income 
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Cash
$120
15%

Commercial paper/CDs
$138
18%

Treasury/US agency
$185
24%

Corporate/other bonds
$128
17%

Asset backed $9 1%
Pooled/other $11 1%

Balanced mutual funds
(50%/50%)

$97
13%

Quasi-Endowment
(85%/15%)

$83
11%

OHSU Cash & Investments at June 30, 2013 by Asset Class
(Total = $771m)

0 - 90 days
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38%

90 days - 1 year
$182
24%

1 - 3 years
$206
27%

3 - 5 years
$33
4% 5+ years

$54
7%

OHSU Cash & Investments at June 30, 2013 by Maturity 
(Total = $771m)



Proposed Changes to Investment Guidelines 

5 

o We selected JP Morgan to manage ~$320 million of fixed income funds to JP Morgan, 
selected for their analytical, disciplined approach, superior reporting, consistent strong 
position in fixed income markets, and superior returns against benchmarks over 1 / 3 / 
5 / 10 year periods 

o So far, the quality and responsiveness of the new manager relationship has confirmed 
that we chose the right firm 

o We have worked with JP Morgan to review OHSU’s existing investment guidelines, 
and identify appropriate refinements 

o The core guideline—corporate indebtedness must be investment grade—is 
unchanged; we are conforming other guidelines to be consistent with this standard  

o After review at the Investment Committee on October 7th and the Finance & Audit 
Committee on October 21st, we are proposing these changes for approval by the full 
Board today 

 

 



Investment Guidelines:  Benchmarks 

6 

o New benchmarks more accurately reflect portfolio design and fund objectives: 

− Short Term (weighted average)  

 65% BofA ML 9-12 Month US Treasury Index  

 15% BofA ML 0-1 Year AAA-A Corporate Index 

 20% BofA ML 1-2 Year AAA-A Corporate Index 

− Intermediate Term 

 Barclay’s 1-5 Year Gov/Credit Index 

o The duration of OHSU’s portfolios will be within 25% of the underlying benchmark 

o This will give JPM the tactical flexibility to go somewhat short or long of the 
benchmarks as market conditions change, but within limits 

o The blended target duration of the two portfolios is 2.2 years 

 



Investment Guidelines (continued) 

7 

o Minimum credit quality guideline, BBB-/Baa3/BBB- for corporate indebtedness, 
remains unchanged. 

o Minimum short-term credit guideline is expanded from A-1/P-1/F-1 to A-2/P-2/F-2, to 
be consistent with the long-term guideline 

o Certificates of Deposit credit guidelines changed to match corporate indebtedness 
(BBB- or A-2), and Yankee CDs are explicitly allowed 

o Guaranteed Investment Contracts credit guidelines changed from AAA to A- to be 
more consistent with the corporate indebtedness guideline and market availability 
(there are no AAA GICs anymore, and most GICs are rated a notch above other 
corporate debt of the issuing insurance company) 

o New limits on maximum percent of total portfolio and on issue/issuer concentration are 
set, with somewhat higher limits for dollar-dominated debt of foreign governments or 
agencies (rated at least A/A2/A), and for AAA-rated agency mortgage backed 
securities 



Investment Guidelines (continued) 

8 

o Commercial real estate mortgage-backed securities (rated AAA) and taxable or tax-
exempt municipal bonds (rated at least A or A-1) are explicitly permitted 

o Maximum final effective maturity limited to 5 years and 2 weeks from settlement date, 
for these two fixed income portfolios 

o If there are three ratings (S&P, Moody’s and Fitch), the middle rating is used, but if 
there are only two ratings, the lower is used   

  



 

Page 1 of 2 

  

 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-10-05 

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the Investment Committee and Finance and Audit Committee conduct 
periodic reviews of certain policies adopted by the Board of Directors; 

 
  WHEREAS, members of the Committees reviewed the Investment Policy and provided 
their comments to the Board at the October 24, 2013 Board meeting; and 

 
  WHEREAS the Board now wishes to adopt certain amendments to this policy; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
The Board hereby approves the amendments to Exhibit A of the Investment Policy as reflected 
on the Exhibit 1 to this Resolution attached hereto, effective immediately. 

 
 

This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013 
 
 Yeas  ______ 
 
 Nays  ______ 
 
 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 
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FY14 First Quarter Financial Results 
 
OHSU Board of Directors 
September 24, 2013 
 



Summary of FY14 First Quarter Results 

o OHSU’s FY14 operating income through September (3 months) is $19.7 million 

− $6 million above budget 

− 2% above FY13 Q1 

− $(5) million shortfall in revenues, largely due to slower application of gifts, more 
than offset by $(11) million reduction in compensation, supplies and services 

o Hospital above target with 6% operating margin, while other university operations have 
essentially balanced revenues and expenses 

o Patient activity lagging budget but above last year (not unusual for first quarter), with 
shift from inpatient admissions to observation cases and ambulatory visits 

o Nonetheless, patient revenues are on budget with more favorable mix of cases:  
commercially-insured share of activity1.5% points above budget 

1 



FY14 Q1 Operating Income at $19.7M 

First Quarter FY13 FY14 FY14 Actual - Actual /
(millions) Last Year Budget Actual Budget Last Year

Net patient revenue $369.6 $395.9 $396.2 $0.3 7.2%
Grants & contracts 88.3 88.6 88.0 (0.5) -0.3%
Gifts applied to operations 10.9 17.7 13.2 (4.5) 20.4%
Tuition & fees 15.0 13.0 13.2 0.2 -12.2%
State appropriations 7.5 8.1 8.6 0.5 14.2%
Other revenue 19.9 24.2 23.1 (1.1) 16.0%

______ ______ ______ ______ _____ 
Operating revenues 511.4 547.5 542.3 (5.2) 6.1%

Salaries & benefits 304.3 327.1 324.4 (2.7) 6.6%
Services & supplies 139.4 155.8 147.6 (8.3) 5.9%
Medicaid provider tax 12.5 16.6 16.5 (0.1) 31.9%
Depreciation 27.7 28.2 28.3 0.1 2.2%
Interest 8.1 6.3 5.9 (0.5) -27.6%

______ ______ ______ ______ _____ 
Operating expenses 492.0 534.0 522.6 (11.5) 6.2%

Operating income:
Hospital 20.6 14.4 20.2 5.7 -2.2%
Other university (1.3) (1.0) (0.4) 0.5 -66.2%

______ ______ ______ ______ _____ 
Total OHSU $19.3 $13.5 $19.7 $6.3 2.1%

2 



Patient Activity Lags Budget but Above FY13 

3 

First Quarter FY13 FY14 FY14 Actual / Actual /
Patient Activity Last Year Budget Actual Budget Last Year

Inpatient admissions 7,697 7,737 7,438 -3.9% -3.4%
Average length of stay 5.4 5.5 5.6 1.8% 3.7%
Average daily census 443 454 449 -1.1% 1.4%

Surgical cases 7,585 7,758 7,789 0.4% 2.7%
Emergency visits 11,934 11,628 11,479 -1.3% -3.8%
Ambulatory visits 184,037 197,868 190,113 -3.9% 3.3%

Case mix index 1.90 1.96 1.96 0.0% 3.2%
Outpatient share of activity 42.4% 43.5% 44.0% 1.1% 3.8%

CMI/OP adjusted admissions 25,401 26,841 26,053 -2.9% 2.6%



FY14 First Quarter Balance Sheet 

o Consolidated net worth up $58 million or 2.7% through September, with $19.7 million 
operating gain, solid investment results and $25 million gift for pancreatic disease from 
Norman and Linda Brenden and the Colson Family Foundation 

o Despite the increase in net worth, operating cash flow is negative $(66) million in the 
first three months, but this largely reflects timing issues that reverse later in the fiscal 
year, including: 

− $17 million of annual principal repayment and bond sinking fund deposits made in 
first quarter 

− $6 million from lump sum deposit of $7.5 million to PERS side account 

− $15 million timing difference between payment of A/P for capital projects vs. draws 
on CLSB project funds 

− $26 million from federal student loans disbursed in September but reimbursed to 
OHSU in October 

 

 

 
4 



Net Worth Up but Cash Down with Payments 

5 

Balance Sheet 6/30/12 9/30/12 Sep YTD Operating Cash Flow FY14
(millions) Year-End Actual Change (millions) Sep YTD

Cash & investments $587 $521 $(66) Operating income $20
Quasi-endowment 83 88 6 Depreciation 28
Bond-related funds 49 51 1 Investment total return 7
CLSB project funds 51 32 (19) ____ 

_____ _____ ____ Sources of cash 55
OHSU-held cash & investments 771 693 (78)

Capital additions (51)
Net physical plant 1,413 1,436 23 CLSB project funds applied 19
Interest in Foundations 765 805 40 Change in CLSB/capital A/P (34)
Long-term debt (771) (756) 15 ____ 
Working capital & other, net (8) 50 58 Use of cash for capital (66)

_____ _____ ____ 
OHSU net worth 2,170 2,228 58 Debt repayment & sinking fund (17)

Federal student loan timing (26)
Operating income 20 Patient A/R, PERS & other, net (12)
Investment total return 7 ____ 
Gain on Foundations 40 Total uses of cash (121)
Accounting change (9) ____ 
Other changes, net 0 Sources less uses (66)

____ 
Change in net worth $58 6/30/13 cash & investments 587

9/30/13 cash & investments $521



1,640 Jobs Created Since Financial Crisis 

May-09
12,529

Sep-13
14,167

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

12,000

12,500

13,000

13,500

14,000

14,500

15,000
Ja

n-
07

A
pr

-0
7

Ju
l-0

7

O
ct

-0
7

Ja
n-

08

A
pr

-0
8

Ju
l-0

8

O
ct

-0
8

Ja
n-

09

A
pr

-0
9

Ju
l-0

9

O
ct

-0
9

Ja
n-

10

A
pr

-1
0

Ju
l-1

0

O
ct

-1
0

Ja
n-

11

A
pr

-1
1

Ju
l-1

1

O
ct

-1
1

Ja
n-

12

A
pr

-1
2

Ju
l-1

2

O
ct

-1
2

Ja
n-

13

A
pr

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3

O
ct

-1
3

Ja
n-

14

Trend in Total OHSU Headcount

6 



 

Page 1 of 2 

  

 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-10-07 

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board wishes to identify and appoint the members of each of the Board 
Committees, as well as identify the Board members who serve on the Integrity Program 
Oversight Council and the University Health System Board; 

 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
Committee Appointments.  The following persons are appointed to the following committees 
to serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors: 
 

Finance & Audit Committee 
Maria Pope (Chair) 
MardiLyn Saathoff 
Jay Waldron 
 
Governance Committee 
MardiLyn Saathoff (Chair) 
Ken Allen 
Poorav Patel 
 
Human Resources Committee 
Amy Tykeson, (Interim Chair)   
Jay Waldron 
Charles Wilhoite 
 
Board Members Appointed to Integrity Program Oversight Council 
David Yaden (Interim Chair) 
Ken Allen 
Poorav Patel 
 
Board Members Appointed to Investment Committee  
Maria Pope 
David Yaden 
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Board Members Appointed to University Health System Board   
Joe Robertson 
Jay Waldron 
David Yaden  

 
 

This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013 
 
 Yeas  ______ 
 
 Nays  ______ 
 
 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 
 
 
 
   
 
   
 
 
 



Senate Bill 565 Implementation 

October 24, 2013 



Police Officer Authority 
• Senate Bill 658 (2009) 

– Granted OHSU’s administration the ability to  
commission police officers 

– Enhanced lawful abilities 
• Probable cause arrests 
• Stop and frisk 
• Police officer mental health holds 

– Commissioning authority repealed by Senate 
Bill 565, effective January 1, 2014 



Police Officer Authority 
• Senate Bill 565 (2013) 

– Took effect May 16, 2013 
– Grants OHSU Board of Directors, or university 

officials acting under authority of the board, 
the ability to commission officers as of 
January 1, 2014 

– Restores officers to the same legal and 
practical footing they are on today 

– Arming withheld pending Board approval next 
year 



Commissioning 
• Final step of hiring process; required to 

legally “activate” an individual officer 
• Has traditionally been a management 

function 
• No November or December Board 

meeting 
• Employee turnover and operational needs 

dictate direct managerial oversight of 
commissioning process 

 
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-10-09 
OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
WHEREAS in OHSU has authority to establish a police department and commission university 
police officers, with the limitation that such officers will not carry firearms; and 
 
WHEREAS the University has engaged in ongoing review and evaluation of its critical incident 
readiness to ensure the continued safety of the OHSU community; and  
 
WHEREAS one result of that ongoing effort was the passage of Senate Bill 565 in 2013, which 
authorizes OHSU to establish a police department and commission police officers without the 
previous limitation on firearms; and 
 
WHEREAS one result of SB 565 is that all current university police officers must be re-
commissioned before January 1, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS the commissioning of university police officers is currently a management function 
that is, by written policy, carried out by the OHSU Chief Administrative Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS SB 565 provides that either the Board of Directors or university officials acting under 
the authority of the board shall commission the university police officers; and 
 
WHEREAS the Board wishes to continue to delegate to management the authority to 
commission officers; and 
 
WHEREAS this Resolution does not constitute an authorization for officers to carry firearms, 
and recognizes that a request for such authorization will be presented to the board at a later 
date; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby delegates to the President or the 
President’s designee the authority to commission individuals as police officers for OHSU. 
 
 
This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013. 
 
 Yeas ________ 
 Nays ________ 
 
 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013 
   
       

____________________________________ 
     Connie Seeley, Board Secretary 



Resolution 2013-10-11 
 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-10-11 
OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Oregon Health & Science University 
wishes to recognize the service of Román D. Hernández on the OHSU Board:   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Oregon Health & Science 
University expresses its sincere appreciation for the valuable service and 
dedication of Román Hernández throughout his tenure on the OHSU Board of 
Directors, including his service as Chair of the Human Resources Committee and 
as a member of the Governance Committee of the Board, and for advancing 
OHSU’s missions of teaching, healing, discovery and outreach.    
 
This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013. 

 
   Yeas ______ 
 
   Nays ______ 
 

Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 



Resolution 2013-10-10 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-10-10 
OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 WHEREAS, Charles Wilhoite has served as a member of the Board of Directors of 
Oregon Health & Science University since February 1, 2004 and has led the institution as Chair 
of the OHSU Board of Directors since April 8, 2010. 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to and as a part of his membership and leadership on the OHSU 
Board, Mr. Wilhoite served as a member of the Finance and Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors, as a member of the Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, as a member 
of the Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors, as a member and Chair of the 
Integrity Program Advisory Committee, and as one of the Board representatives on the 
University Health System Board.    
 
 WHEREAS, throughout his Board service and in each of these many venues,  
Mr. Wilhoite has brought his strong intellect, his inclusive and thoughtful approach to decision 
making, his sound critical thinking, his good humor and his strong leadership skills.  
 
 WHEREAS, with his knowledge base of the health care and finance industries, 
Mr. Wilhoite has greatly advanced the strategic interests of the University and furthered the 
pursuit of best practices in financial management, health care quality, regulatory compliance, 
business ethics and internal controls.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to recognize the major contributions of Mr. Wilhoite, his 
service on the OHSU Board, his leadership as Chair of the OHSU Board, and as a member on 
each of the Committees of the OHSU Board of Directors and the University Health System 
Board.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Oregon Health & Science University 
expresses its deep and heartfelt appreciation for the significant contributions of Charles Wilhoite 
throughout his service on the OHSU Board of Directors, for the energy, the vision and the 
critical and creative thinking that he has brought to the strategic discussions of the University, 
and for his strong leadership in advancing OHSU’s missions of teaching, healing, discovery and 
outreach.    

 
This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013. 

 
   Yeas ______ 
 
   Nays ______ 

 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 
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RESOLUTION 2013-10-08 

OREGON HEALTH & SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WHEREAS, with the departure from the OHSU Board of Directors of its Chair Charles Wilhoite, 
the Board wishes to appoint Jay Waldron to serve as Chair of the Board, and  
 
WHEREAS the Board further wishes to appoint a Vice Chair of the Board; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

 
Jay Waldron is hereby appointed to serve as Chair of the OHSU Board of Directors, to 
serve at the pleasure of the Board; and 
 
Maria Pope is hereby appointed to serve as the Vice Chair of the OHSU Board of 
Directors, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. 
 
 

This Resolution is adopted this 24th day of October, 2013 
 
 Yeas  ______ 
 
 Nays  ______ 
 
 
Signed by the Secretary of the Board on October 24, 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Connie Seeley 
      Board Secretary 
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